





HANDBOOK F-12 REVISION

# **Relocation Policy Changes**

Employees affected by a reassignment are now entitled to expanded allowances. If the reassignment effective date on Form 50, *Notification of Personnel Action*, is dated on or after the date of this *Postal Bulletin*, the policies noted below change those currently defined in Handbook F–12, *Relocation Policy*.

Major changes for nonbargaining employees follow:

Miscellaneous expense allowance. Increases from \$1,000 to \$2,500.

Temporary quarters and storage of household goods. The approving official may grant up to an additional 15 days.

Loan origination fee. The 1 percent limitation increases to 2 percent.

Advance round trips. The employee may take up to three trips, and dependents may accompany the employee and/or spouse on these trips.

Return trip to old duty station. One trip is allowed.

Real estate time reimbursement limit. The written annual extension request and approval for year 2 and year 3 is changed. A written request and approval is necessary for the third year only.

#### **Relocation Management Firm**

Home Purchase Program. No deviation is required; the grade level changes from EAS-21 and above to EAS-19 and above. The required marketing time of 60 days is eliminated.

Marketing Assistance. Available upon request.

Changes for all postal employees follow:

The following real estate transaction expenses are reimbursable:

Tax service (document filing) Underwriting fees

Owner's title insurance

The requirement to have Form 4877, Reimbursement of Real Estate Expenses—Change of Official Station, approved by an official at the former duty station for real estate selling expenses is eliminated. The only signature required is the approving official's at the new duty station.

NOTE: Form 8059, Request for Relocation Management Firm (RMF) Service, must initiate any RMF service. The current form is not updated for marketing services. Therefore, when employees request this service, write the request on the face of the form.

Section IV, Approvals, part A, Sales Expenses, and B, Purchase Expenses, of the October 1990 edition of Form 4877 is now obsolete. The approving official signs the form in the space titled Funding Finance Number Approving Official's Signature and Date.

Change the following sections of Handbook F-12, Relocation Policy:

281 Maximum time for completing your move. You should complete your move as soon as possible. You must complete all allowable travel and transportation within 3 years from the effective date (date reported for duty at your new official station) of your transfer or appointment. The time limit for real estate transactions is as follows:

Nonbargaining employees—2 years from the effective date of your transfer or appointment. The time limit may be extended for an additional year.

Bargaining employees—1 year; however, this time limit may be extended for up to 2 additional years. (See section 610.2(d).)

**291 Nonbargaining employees.** You may claim \$2,500, regardless of marital/family status. The itemization feature is not allowed. (See Exhibit 291.)

# Chapter 3 Advance Round Trip, En Route and Return Trip to Old Residence

#### 310 Taking an Advance Round Trip

311 General rule. When circumstances warrant, the appropriate approving official may authorize travel and expenses for up to three round trips (for nonbargaining employees) or one round trip (for bargaining employees) for the purpose of seeking a permanent residence or mobile home site at the new official station. You may take this trip with your spouse, or either of you may take it alone. Nonbargaining employees or their spouses may have their dependents accompany them if necessary. If you take this trip, you must take it before you report to your new official duty station. If your spouse takes this trip instead of you, he or she must take it before your family moves to the new duty station, but not later than 2 years from your reporting date. New employees and their spouses will not be allowed an advance round trip unless an officer of the Postal Service authorizes it.

312.2 Amount of time for the advance round trip. The Postal Service will allow a reasonable amount of time for the advance round trip, considering the distance between old and new duty stations, the mode of transportation to be used, and the housing situation at the new location. In no case will the Postal Service pay for an advance round trip of more than 10 calendar days (9 nights of lodging), including travel time. In authorizing a mode of transportation, the Postal Service will allow for minimum time en route and maximum time at the official station locality. You will be on working status during the period of absence for the approved round trip and will not be charged leave.

NoTE: Nonbargaining employees are allowed three round trips, if necessary, not to exceed 10 days and 9 nights in total.

312.5 Claiming per diem, lodging, and personal phone calls home expenses for the advance round trip. If you, your spouse, and dependent(s) take the advance round trip, you may claim actual lodging expenses. Quarterly per diem is allowed as follows:

- a. Employee: Standard quarterly per diem.
- Spouse: 75 percent of the standard quarterly per diem rate.
- c. Dependent(s) (nonbargaining employees): Each dependent receives 75 percent of the standard quarterly per diem rate.
- d. Spouse unaccompanied by employee: Standard quarterly per diem.

NoTE: See Appendix B for applicable per diem rates. For advance round trips to Alaska, Hawaii, Puerto Rico, or United States possessions, per diem rates published by the Department of Defense in Civilian Personnel Per Diem Bulletins apply.

One phone call home, per 24-hour period, may be reimbursed when the employee's immediate family does not accompany the employee (or the employee does not accompany the immediate family) on the advance round trip. The length of the reimbursable phone call may not exceed 5 minutes. The least expensive means of placing the phone call must be used, when possible. Postal Service owned or leased phone lines may be used for these calls. If Postal Service owned or leased lines are not used for these calls, you may claim the expense on your Form 1012, *Travel Voucher* (no receipts are necessary). Questionable costs may be subject to challenge or request for clarification by approving officials.

# 340 Return Trip to Old Residence (Nonbargaining Employees)

**341 Conditions.** If you report to your place of assignment before you have relocated, you are entitled one trip to your old residence to conclude relocation-associated business or return to accompany your family to the new residence. No advances are authorized for this trip and no per diem or lodging costs may be claimed for expenses incurred while at your old residence.

**342** Reimbursable expenses. You will be reimbursed for the following items under this allowance:

- a. Transportation expenses for yourself only;
- b. Limousine or taxi fare to or from transportation terminals, the current mileage rate if a POV is used to go to and from these facilities, parking fees; and
- c. Per diem while traveling.

**343 Public transportation.** If you plan to travel by air, rail, or bus, you are expected to use your personal U.S. government credit card to obtain your ticket at the lowest fare available.

#### 410 Making Shipping Arrangements

#### 412 All employees

#### 412.1 RMF services

g. Storing household goods up to 60 days, if necessary. The approving official may grant up to an additional 15 days for nonbargaining employees. No additional extensions will be allowed.

#### 510 Allowances for Temporary Quarters

#### 520. Limitations on Temporary Quarters

#### 522 Authorizing expenses for temporary quarters

- 522.1 Temporary quarters time period. The appropriate approving official may authorize subsistence expenses for temporary quarters for 60 consecutive calendar days (for nonbargaining employees) or 30 days (for bargaining employees). The approving official may grant up to an additional 15 days for nonbargaining employees. No additional extensions will be allowed. If temporary quarters are occupied for any part of a day, it counts as 1 day of the authorized maximum number of days. The approving official may reduce or disallow allowances for temporary quarters if:
  - a. You have made a round trip to seek permanent residence quarters; or
  - b. As a result of extended temporary duty at the new official station (detail) or other circumstances, you have had the opportunity to make arrangements for permanent quarters; or
  - c. The approving official determines that you have had enough time to find permanent quarters.
- **522.2** Interruption of temporary quarters. The 60 consecutive days (for nonbargaining employees) or 30 consecutive days (for bargaining employees) may be interrupted only for the following reasons:
  - a. Time spent in official travel status.
  - b. Scheduled vacation leave that the employee cannot change.
  - c. Other extenuating circumstances over which the employee has no control, such as a death in the family.

The temporary quarters time period may be interrupted only when all expenses (lodging, meals, laundry, and cleaning) associated with the temporary quarters are suspended for the time the employee is away.

If members of the employee's immediate family remain in temporary quarters while the employee is away, temporary quarters cannot be interrupted.

•

523.2 Limitation on reimbursements during return trips home. The Postal Service does not allow subsistence expenses while you are at home. However, if you can show by cost comparison that the round-trip expenses would not be greater than expenses incurred while in the temporary quarters site, the Postal Service may reimburse you for the costs of traveling home and returning to the temporary quarters. You must discuss this with the official who approves the voucher before arbitrarily returning home and subsequently claiming related expenses. (Nonbargaining employees see part 340 for further details.)

#### 610 Conditions and Requirements

#### 612 Conditions for reimbursement

d. The settlement dates for the sale and purchase, or for terminating the lease, are not later than 2 years (for nonbargaining employees) or not later than 1 (initial) year (for bargaining employees) after the date on which you reported for duty at your new official station. If you submit a written request to the appropriate approving official before the end of the second year (for nonbargaining employees) or before the end of the initial year and second year (for bargaining employees), this time limit may be extended for up to 1 additional year.

NOTE: If you encounter unique and unusual circumstances, you may submit a written request through your installation or department head to the appropriate officer for a second extension of up to 1 year (for nonbargaining employees) or a third extension (for bargaining employees). You must submit this request well before the extension taking you into the third year expires. Any further extensions must be processed using the deviation procedures described in part 180. You must specify exactly the efforts you have taken to market the property and provide documentation showing a continuous and reasonable effort to complete the transaction. Each manager in the chain-of-command must attach a recommendation with supporting comments. If an extension is approved, your office must immediately prepare an amended Form 178, Specific Travel Order-Relocation and Relocation Agreement, and distribute it.

#### 624 Costs of selling or buying a home

**624.2** Reimbursable costs. The following costs may be reimbursed:

- j. Tax services (document filing).
  - Loan origination fee (nonbargaining employees only) associated with the purchase of a residence at the new official duty station. Limited to no more than 2 percent of the value of the associated loan.

#### 625 Settlement costs

- **625.1** Reimbursable expenses. The Postal Service will reimburse the following settlement costs if they do not exceed the amounts customarily charged in the locality of the residence and they are customarily paid by the seller in the area of the old official station or by the buyer in the area of the new official station:
  - a. FHA or VA loan application fee.
  - b. Costs of preparing a credit report.
  - c. Mortgage and transfer taxes.
  - d. State revenue stamps and similar fees and charges.
  - Mortgage title insurance required by the lending institution to obtain a mortgage loan (commonly called lender's coverage).
  - f. Owners title insurance purchased by the buyer. Attorney fees for title search and abstracts are not reimbursable.
  - g. Underwriting fees.

**625.3** Nonreimbursable expenses. The Postal Service will not reimburse the following settlement costs:

- a. Insurance against damage or loss of property.
- b. Interest on loans, points, and mortgage discounts.
- c. Loan commitment fee.
- d. Loan origination fee (bargaining employees).
- e. Loan assumption or transfer fee.
- f. Property taxes.
- g. Operating or maintenance costs.
- h. VA funding fee (see section 625.1).

632 How your claim will be reviewed and approved. Submit Form 4877 with supporting documents to the approving official who approves your travel for the change in duty stations. The approving official will review your claims for reasonableness based on policy and sign the voucher. After the voucher is reviewed and signed, the approving official will submit your voucher to the San Mateo Accounting Service Center (SMASC). The SMASC will audit and process youchers for payment. Expenses

claimed which are not covered within Chapter 6 of this handbook will not be paid.

#### 640 RMF Service for Home Sales

#### 641 Requirements

- **641.1 Eligibility.** This program is offered to EAS personnel, grade level 19 or above (Inspection Service personnel grade level 17 or above) only. Participation in the program is optional and must be exercised within 45 days after the effective date of your new assignment. You and your new manager must ensure adherence to the 45-day time frame. If you need to delay this decision, you must follow the procedures outlined in section 180 of this handbook. The following criteria must be met:
  - a. The title to the residence must comply with the conditions stated in section 612.b.
  - b. The distance between the former residence and the new official duty station must be at least 70 miles.
  - c. The residence to be sold must be appraised at no less than \$50,000 and must be situated on no more than 1 acre of land. The \$50,000 appraisal criteria will ultimately be governed by the appraisal performed by the independent appraisers chosen by you from a list provided by the RMF.

NoTE: Mobile homes, houseboats, uninsurable homes, homes that cannot be financed, homes that are not in marketable condition, homes on which construction has not been completed, homes located on excess acreage, homes that do not comply with state and local codes, homes that are contaminated with toxic substances such as radon gas, lead paint, asbestos or Urea Formaldehyde Foam Insulation (UFFI), and other similar residences are not eligible for consideration.

# 642 Guidelines to follow when filing for home sale

- **642.1 Elements of the Home Sale Service Request.** The employee must include the following with their request:
  - a. Copy of the closing statement pertaining to the purchase of your old residence.
  - b. The real estate broker(s) report on marketing efforts, which includes length of market time, list prices, concessions offered, and copies of the advertisement, if available (not required).
  - c. Copy of a recent property appraisal, if available.
     (A property appraisal conducted by a financial institution is not acceptable.)

- d. If readily available, photographs of the property and immediate area, and/or other documentation that would support the request.
- **642.2** The activation process. The transferee must present all supporting documentation to their immediate PCES manager along with a completed form 8059, *Request for Relocation Management Firm (RMF) Service*. The package must be forwarded to the following appropriate approving official which is one of the following:

Manager, Corporate Accounting, Finance—for Headquarters related personnel (includes Headquarters field units).

Area Office Manager, Finance—for area office related personnel.

Area Office Manager, Finance—for district/plant related personnel.

Chief Postal Inspector, Deputy Chief Inspector Operations—for Headquarters Inspection Service related personnel

Inspector in Charge—for Inspection Service personnel.

The appropriate approving official will sign a completed Form 8059, Request for Relocation Management Firm (RMF) Service, and forward the form to the San Mateo Information Service Center (SMISC). The Form 8059 authorizes the SMISC to initiate the RMF service for the transferee.

**642.3** Relocation coordinator. The RMF will assign a relocation coordinator to act as your contact within 2 days after the firm is notified that you plan to use its service. The relocation coordinator will answer questions relative to the home purchase service.

# 650 RMF Service for Marketing Assistance

- 651 Marketing assistance. Marketing assistance starts as soon as you are authorized for service. The RMF consultant will help you market your home even before it is appraised. The goal is to help you to get the best possible price for your home in a reasonable period of time.
- **652 Eligibility.** Participation in the program is optional and is available to all EAS personnel.

# 940 Submitting Travel/Relocation Vouchers

944 Submitting vouchers for transfers and change of station. If you transfer from another government agency to the Headquarters of the Postal Service, or between Postal Service installations, you must charge these expenses to the appropriate account for relocation travel and to the department or office that is acquiring you. These vouchers will be processed by the San Mateo Information Service Center. Submit the vouchers to:

RELOCATION MANAGEMENT SECTION SAN MATEO INFORMATION SERVICE CENTER 2700 CAMPUS DRIVE SAN MATEO CA 94497-9420

#### Appendix C

Expense Accounts Used in Connection With Relocation/Travel

Add:

51245 Personal Benefits—Return Trips to Residence at Former Residence

Delete the following sections:

- 632.1 Where to submit Form 4877 for review and approval
- 632.2 Review of real estate expenses
- 633 How to submit a claim for payment
- 634 Administrative approval

634.1 Approving official

634.2 Forwarding for payment

Change the following:

Appendix D
Form 4877, Reimbursement of Real Estate
Expenses—Change of Official Station

- s. Title of Approving Official (at former duty station): No longer applicable.
- t. Date: No longer applicable.
- u. Title of Approving Official (at new duty station):
   No longer applicable.
- v. Date: No longer applicable.
- w. Signature of Approving Official (at former duty station): No longer applicable.
- x. Signature of Approving Official (at new duty station): No longer applicable.

-Finance, 8-4-94

# U.S. Postal Service Washington, D.C. 20260-5211

Handbook F-12 Relocation Policy

June 1991

#### A. Explanation

This new handbook contains all policy pertaining to relocation. It includes information formerly appearing in Chapter 7 of Handbook F-10, *Travel*, dated May 1, 1985, and Handbook F-10A, *Relocation Guidelines*, dated May 1, 1988, and all changes that have been published in the Postal Bulletin since May 1, 1985.

Highlights of incorporated changes include:

Per Diem Rates	High cost increased to \$8.50; average cost decreased to \$6.50.
Standard Mileage Rate	Mileage rate reimbursement for the use of privately owned automobiles increased to 24 a mile.
Travel Forms	Forms contain major revisions.
Home Sales	Relocation Management Firm (RMF) services may be requested by specified relocating EAS personnel.
Advance Round Trip	EAS employees allowed two trips.
Miscellaneous Expense	EAS employees' amount increased to \$1,000.
Household Goods	EAS employees afforded the option to use services of a RMF.
Personal Phone Calls	Allowance added to the appropriate section.
Grossing Up	EAS employees allowed Gross Up allowances.
Distance Requirement	Distance requirement for receiving relocation benefits standardized.
Lot Size	Reimbursement of real estate expenses limited to the equivalent of residences on no more than 5 acres.
High Cost Per Diem Localities	List updated.

#### B. Filing

The receiving office must provide Handbook F-12 to all relocating employees. All relocating personnel must acknowledge receipt of this handbook when signing Form 178, Specific Travel Order - Relocation & Relocation Agreement.

#### C. Distribution

1. Initial. This document is being sent to Headquarters, Regions, Divisions, Management Sectional Centers (MSCs) and Postal Data Centers (PDCs); William F. Bolger Management Academy; Technical Training Center and Maintenance Technical Support Center; National Information Systems Development Center; Procurement & Materiel Management Service Centers and Offices; and Facilities Service Centers and Offices.

2. Copies. Additional copies may be ordered on Form 7380, MDC Supply Requisition, from your supply center.

# D. Comments and Questions

Address any comments or questions regarding the handbook through official channels to:

GENERAL MANAGER
ASSETS AND PAYABLES SYSTEMS DIVISION
OFFICE OF ACCOUNTING
DEPARTMENT OF THE CONTROLLER
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
475 L'ENFANT PLZ SW RM 8800
WASHINGTON DC 20260-5211

#### E. Effective Date

These instructions are effective on receipt.

M. Richard Porras

Assisiant Postmaster General Department of the Controller

# **CONTENTS**

# Chapter 1--Introduction to Handbook F-12

#### 110 Organization

#### 120 Special Features of Handbook F-12

- 121 Table of Contents
- 122 Exhibits
- 123 Form Reference list
- 124 Appendix A, Approving Officials
- 125 Appendix B, Reimbursement Rates
- 126 Appendix C, Expense Accounts Used in Connection with Travel/Relocation
- 127 Appendix D, Instructions for Completion of Forms

# 130 Setting Policy and Approving Relocation and Related Travel

- 131 Role of the Postal Service
- 132 Role of PCES executives

#### 140 When to Travel

- 141 Deciding when to travel due to relocation
- 142 Avoid unnecessary cost
- 143 If you are in the Inspection Service

# 150 Where to Submit Relocation/Travel Documents for Payment

# 160 Responsibilities of the Approving Official

- 161 Authorizing travel
- 162 Signing a voucher

#### 170 Responsibilities of the Traveler

# 180 Deviations from the Regulations

- 181 How to request a deviation from these regulations
- 182 Processing a request for a deviation
- 183 What to do if your request is approved

# Chapter 2--Relocation Allowances

# 210 What this Chapter Covers

# 220 Allowable Expenses and Advances

- 221 Allowable expenses
- 222 Advance of funds authorization
- 223 Obtaining advances for relocation
- 224 Repaying advances for relocation

# 230 Definitions

- 231 Continental United States (CONUS)
- 232 Effective date of transfer or appointment

- 233 Household goods
- 234 Immediate family
- 235 Mobile homes
- 236 Official station

# 240 Eligibility for Moving Expenses

- 241 Transferred employee
- 242 Newly hired employee
- 243 Relocation resulting from a reduction in force (RIF)
- 244 Several family members employed by the Postal Service
- 245 Taking relocation leave

#### 250 Signing a Service Agreement

- 251 Definition
- 252 Your liability under the agreement

#### 260 Withholding Tax for Relocation Expenses

- 261 Relocation expenses subject to Federal income tax withholding
- 262 Relocation expenses not subject to Federal income tax withholding

# 270 Issuing Form 178, Specific Travel Order - Relocation & Relocation

# 280 Limitations on Moving

- 281 Maximum time for completing your move
- 282 Time extension for military service
- 283 Time extension for duty outside CONUS
- 284 Distance requirement
- 285 Exceptions to the 35-Mile Rule

# 290 Miscellaneous Expense Allowances

- 291 Non bargaining employees
- 292 Bargaining employees
- 293 Exception

# Chapter 3--Advance Round Trip and En Route Travel

# 310 Taking an Advance Round Trip

- 311 General rule
- 312 What will and will not be authorized

#### 320 En Route Transportation Expenses

# 330 General Rules on Subsistence Expenses

- 331 Driving distance requirement
- 332 Computing per diem for minimum driving distance
- 333 Deviating from the acceptable route
- 334 Personal phone calls home while en route
- 335 Amount of allowable subsistence expense for en route travel

# Chapter 4--Transporting and Temporarily Storing Personal Property

# 410 Making Shipping Arrangements

- 411 General
- 412 Non bargaining employees
- 413 Bargaining employees

#### 420 Transporting POVs

- 421 Conditions for transporting a POV
- 422 Conditions for transporting more than one POV

# 430 Reimbursable Expenses for the POV

- 431 Costs of transporting an additional POV
- 432 Costs of transporting POV(s) from/to outside/inside CONUS

# 440 Transporting Mobile Homes-Receiving an Allowance

- 441 Computing distances
- 442 Computing allowances
- 443 How much you may claim

#### Chapter 5--Temporary Quarters

# 510 Allowances for Temporary Quarters

- 511 Definition
- 512 Conditions and limitations on temporary quarters

# 520 Limitations on Temporary Quarters

- 521 When you must begin using temporary quarters
- 522 Authorizing expenses for temporary quarters
- 523 Trips home during time period for temporary quarters
- 524 Occupying temporary quarters in more than one location

# 530 Allowable Reimbursement for Temporary Quarters

- 531 Reimbursement for actual subsistence expenses and personal phone calls home
- 532 Obtaining required receipts
- 533 Computing the maximum bargaining employees
- 534 Computing the maximum non bargaining employees

# Chapter 6--Real Estate Transactions and Unexpired Leases

#### 610 Conditions and Requirements

- 611 Reimbursement for settlement expenses
- 612 Conditions for reimbursement
- 613 Disclosure statements

# 620 Reimbursable and Non-reimbursable Expenses

- 621 Overall limitations on reimbursement
- 622 Broker's fees and real estate commissions
- 623 Other advertising and selling expenses
- 624 Costs of selling or buying a home
- 625 Settlement costs

- 626 Losses from market condition
- 627 Expenses from settling unexpired leases

#### 630 Submitting a Claim for Reimbursement of Real Estate Expenses

- 631 How to apply for reimbursement and how to document expenses
- 632 How your claim will be reviewed and approved
- 633 How to submit a claim for payment
- 634 Administrative approval

#### 640 RMF Service for Home Sales

- 641 Requirements
- 642 Guidelines to follow when filing Home Sale Deviation .

# Chapter 7--Relocation as Part of the Management Associate Program

# 710 Explanation

# 720 What the Postal Service will Pay

- 721 Reassignment expenses
- 722 Real estate transactions and limitations
- 723 Unexpired leases

# 730 Assignment to a Previous Site

#### 740 Time Limits for Settling Real Estate Transactions

741 General rule

742 Unusual circumstances

# 750 Travel Vouchers for the MA Program

# Chapter 8--Grossing Up Allowance - Non Bargaining Employees

# 810 Employee Responsibilities

# 820 "Grossing Up" Allowance

- 821 Definition
- 822 Resignation and retirement
- 823 Completing Form 4879, Certification Statement

# Chapter 9--Completing Travel/Relocation Vouchers

# 910 What To Remember about Completing Travel/Relocation Vouchers

#### 920 Common Errors

- 921 What to check before submitting your travel/relocation voucher
- 922 How to deal with erasures and alterations

# 930 Supporting Documentation for Form 1012

- 931 Miscellaneous expense-bargaining employees
- 932 Receipts

Relocation Policy CONTENTS

#### 940 Submitting the Travel/Relocation Vouchers

941 Submitting vouchers for change of station and travel to a new duty station

942 Submitting vouchers for the sale or purchase of a residence

943 Where to submit travel vouchers

944 Submitting vouchers for transfers and change of station

950 Reviewing, Approving, and Certifying Vouchers

#### APPENDIX A--APPROVING OFFICIALS

- I. U.S. Postal Service Officers
- II. Delegated Authority to Approve Travel Vouchers, Travel Advance Requests, and Travel Tickets Purchased via GTS System
- III. Restriction

# APPENDIX B--REIMBURSEMENT RATES

- I. Mileage Rates
  - A. Standard mileage rates
  - B. Relocation-related advance round trip and/or en route to new duty station
- II. Per Diem Rates
  - A. What per diem includes
  - B. If lodging is required
  - C. High cost localities
- III. Lodging Rates
  - A. General policies regarding lodging
  - B. If lodging is denied

#### APPENDIX C--EXPENSE ACCOUNTS USED IN CONNECTION WITH TRAVEL

# Form Reference List

Form Number	Title	Handbook Reference	Exhibit
178	Specific Travel Order - Relocation & Relocation Agreement	244, 251, 270, 312.1b., 612a	244
1011	Travel Advance Request and Itinerary Schedule	170 d., 223	223
1012	Travel Voucher	312.5, 334, 531, 910, 920, 930, 940, 950	335.4
3903	(IRS) Moving Expenses	811.1 a	
4782	(IRS Facsimile Form) Employee Moving Expense Information	261.2, 810, 821a	810
4871	Relocation - Miscellaneous Expense Allowance Claim	291, 292.2, 931	291, 292.4
4872	Claim for Subsistence Expenses - Temporary Quarters	533.4, 533.5, 534.2, 534.3	533.4, 534.2
4877	Reimbursement of Real Estate Expenses - Change of Official Station	613, 631.1, 631.2, 632.1, 632.2, 633, 634.1, 634.2	631.1
4879	Certification Statement - Claim for Relocation Income Tax Allowance	823	
8059	Request for Relocation Management Firm (RMF) Service	412.2	412.2

# Chapter 1 Introduction to Handbook F-12

# 110 Organization

This handbook is organized to help you find information as easily as possible. In general, procedures follow the normal step-by-step relocation sequence, from receiving authorization to completing vouchers.

# 120 Special Features of Handbook F-12

#### 121 Table of Contents

The Table of Contents for Handbook F-12 serves as a reference source for the entire handbook. In addition to chapter, subchapter, and section headings, the Table of Contents contains a Form Reference List.

#### 122 Exhibits

Relevant forms appear at the end of the chapter in which they are referenced.

#### 123 Form Reference List

All forms mentioned in the handbook are listed by both number and title at the end of the Table of Contents. In the text, after being spelled out the first time, they are identified by form number.

#### 124 Appendix A, Approving Officials

This appendix lists, by title, those authorized to approve relocation vouchers, advances, and travel tickets purchased via Government Travel System (GTS).

#### 125 Appendix B, Reimbursement Rates

This appendix gives the rates that are used to reimburse you for mileage, per diem, and lodging. (Specific conditions and allowances are defined in the text.)

# 126 Appendix C, Expense Accounts Used in Connection with Relocation/Travel

This appendix contains expense account numbers used in connection with relocation and travel.

#### 127 Appendix D, Instructions for Completion of Forms

This appendix contains the instructions for completion of travel and relocation forms included as exhibits in this handbook.

#### 130 Setting Policy and Approving Relocation and Related Travel

# 131 Role of the Postal Service

Title 39, Section 410 of the United States Code, gives the Postal Service the authority to establish its own relocation policy. Current policy is presented in this handbook. All Postal Service-related relocation must comply with the policies stated in this handbook.

#### 132 Role of PCES executives

A Postal Career Executive Service (PCES) executive must be the approving official for relocation advances, relocation vouchers, and GTS tickets. In certain situations, this authority may be delegated to individuals who are not in the PCES. Those exceptions are detailed in Appendix A. PCES executives may not approve their own relocation advances, relocation vouchers, or GTS tickets. This must be done by their next highest approving official.

#### 140 When to Travel

#### 141 Deciding when to travel due to relocation

You must coordinate and plan your travel schedule with approval from both old and new duty station officials.

#### 142 Avoid unnecessary cost

The Postal Service is committed to conserving energy and reducing costs. You are given as much freedom as possible within the guidelines of this handbook to decide what expenditures are necessary--and you are reimbursed for allowable costs you incur while relocating.

# 143 If you are in the Inspection Service

If you are in the Inspection Service, you must follow the instructions issued by the Chief Inspector.

# 150 Where to Submit Relocation/Travel Documents for Payment

Relocation/travel documents are submitted to the San Mateo Postal Data Center (PDC). See part 944 for the appropriate address.

# 160 Responsibilities of the Approving Official

# 161 Authorizing travel

As an approving official, you must review this handbook thoroughly before authorizing a relocation reimbursement request so that you are aware of the traveler's obligations and rights. You must:

- a. Make certain that the expenditures are necessary and directly related to Postal Service relocation.
- b. Approve use of a privately owned vehicle (POV), rental vehicle, apartment rental, etc., before expenses are incurred.

# 162 Signing a voucher

When you sign a voucher, you are verifying that transportation and expenses comply with postal policy. As the approving official, you must:

- a. Make sure that the original supporting documents are attached to the voucher.
- b. Make a cursory review to ensure expenses are reasonable and valid. (See Appendix B, part III.)

#### 170 Responsibilities of the Traveler

You must use the same care and prudence as if you were relocating at your own expense. You must:

- a. Plan the itinerary to accomplish the relocation with minimum time and expense.
- b. Select the least costly mode of transportation that provides adequate service.
- c. Schedule your departure and arrival to conduct business as efficiently as possible.
- d. Submit Form 1011, Travel Advance Request and Itinerary Schedule, for advance of funds no sooner than 2 weeks before you need the money.
- e. Claim reimbursement only for allowable expenses.
- f. When possible, submit vouchers within the accounting period in which the relocation/travel was incurred, and settle travel advances promptly.

# 180 Deviations from the Regulations

# 181 How to request a deviation from these regulations

Requests for deviations where specific allowance parameters are set forth in this handbook will not be considered. In rare circumstances, however, you might need to request a deviation from these regulations. If an unusual situation arises which is not directly addressed in this handbook (if the case is indeed unique), a deviation request will be considered. To request a deviation, you must write a memo and submit it to your immediate supervisor with supporting documentation. Your memo must explain specifically your reasons for requesting the deviation. Pleading ignorance of the limitations stipulated in this handbook does not justify a deviation. Deviations are allowed only in extreme circumstances.

# 182 Processing a request for a deviation

182.1 All Postal Service related units. Request(s) for deviation must be submitted to the General Manager, Assets and Payables Systems Division, Office of Accounting, Headquarters, for review and decision. (See section 182.3.)

**182.2 Recommendations required.** Your immediate PCES manager must affix a recommendation to your deviation request.

# 183 What to do if your request is approved

If your request is approved, you must attach the memo of approval to your relocation/travel voucher. The San Mateo PDC will not process your payment without the memo.

# Chapter 2 Relocation Allowances

#### 210 What this Chapter Covers

This chapter discusses relocation expenses for eligible Postal Service employees who change jobs within the Postal Service. These expenses are to be charged to the budget of the new official station.

#### 220 Allowable Expenses and Advances

#### 221 Allowable expenses

You may be reimbursed for the following relocation allowances:

- a. Advance round trip (part 310).
- b. En route travel (part 320).
- c. Transporting and temporarily storing personal property (Chapter 4).
- d. Temporary quarters (Chapter 5).
- e. Miscellaneous expense allowances (part 290).
- f. Real estate transactions and unexpired leases (Chapter 6).
- g. Relocation as part of the Management Associate Program (Chapter 7).
- h. Grossing up allowance (non bargaining employees) (Chapter 8).

#### 222 Advance of funds authorization

You may be authorized an advance of funds for the following relocation allowances:

- a. Advance round trip.
- b. En route travel.
- c. Transportation of POVs.
- d. Temporary quarters.
- e. Transportation and temporary storage of household goods (bargaining unit employees).
- f. Transportation of mobile homes.

#### 223 Obtaining advances for relocation

When you have determined the amount you need for your relocation, you may submit an approved Form 1011 not more than 2 weeks before you need the funds (see Exhibit 223). No advances will be given for expenses related to the sale or purchase of a residence, or for the miscellaneous expense allowance. (See Appendix A for approval authority.)

#### 224 Repaying advances for relocation

As you complete each phase of your relocation, you should file a travel/relocation voucher accounting for your expenses. If your allowable claimed expenses are less than the amount advanced, you should include a check or money order for the balance due with the travel voucher. Make the check (money order) payable to the Disbursing Officer, U.S. Postal Service.

Note: Your social security number must be annotated on the check or money order. If any part of your move is temporarily delayed or canceled, you must refund the advance you received for that part of your move.

#### 230 Definitions

Unless otherwise specifically provided in these regulations, the following definitions apply:

#### 231 Continental United States (CONUS)

The 48 contiguous states and the District of Columbia.

# 232 Effective date of transfer or appointment

The date on which a new employee or appointee reports for duty at the first or new duty station.

#### 233 Household goods

Personal property which may be transported legally in interstate commerce and which belongs to you and/or your immediate family at the time shipment or storage begins. The term includes household furnishings, equipment and appliances, furniture, clothing, books, and similar property. It does not include property which is for resale or disposal rather than for use by you or members of your immediate family. It does not include items such as motorcycles and similar motor vehicles, airplanes, camper trailers, boats, birds, pets, livestock, building materials, or any property intended for use in conducting a business or other commercial enterprise.

#### 234 Immediate family

Any of the following members of your household at the time you report for duty at your new duty station:

- a. Spouse.
- b. Children. The term "children" includes natural offspring, stepchildren, adopted children, grandchildren, legal minor wards, or other dependent children who are under legal guardianship of you or your spouse. Each of these children must be either:
  - (1) Unmarried and under 21 years of age; or
  - (2) Physically or mentally incapable of supporting himself or herself, regardless of age; or
  - (3) An unmarried full-time student under 23 years of age.
- c. A child born after your effective date of transfer is considered a part of your immediate family if the travel of you or your spouse to the new official station is prevented at the time of the transfer because of advanced stage of pregnancy.
- d. Dependent Parents. Dependent parents of you or your spouse also are considered part of your immediate family. In general, the individuals named above are considered dependents if they receive at least 51 percent of their support from you or your spouse. However, this percentage of support criterion will not be the decisive factor in all cases. Individuals also may be considered dependents for the purposes of this chapter if they are members of your household and, in addition to their own income, receive support (less than 51 percent) from you or your spouse without which they would be unable to maintain a reasonable standard of living.

#### 235 Mobile homes

All types of mobile dwellings constructed for use as residences and designed to be moved.

#### 236 Official station

The building or other place where the employee regularly reports for duty.

# 240 Eligibility for Moving Expenses

The Postal Service will pay properly authorized relocation allowances in the following cases:

# 241 Transferred employee

When you transfer from one official station to another for permanent duty, the transfer must be in the interest of the Postal Service and not primarily for your convenience or benefit, or at your request.

#### 242 Newly hired employee

When a newly hired employee's official duty station is at a different location from the place of residence at the time of appointment, relocation expenses will be allowed only if the expenses are authorized by an appropriate officer of the Postal Service. (See Appendix A, part I.)

#### 243 Relocation resulting from a reduction in force (RIF)

243.1 Involuntary separation. If you transfer to a new official station after being notified of involuntary separation, you are eligible for relocation allowances, subject to the distance requirement limitation. (See part 284.)

243.2 Re-employment. If you leave the Postal Service because of a RIF or transfer of function, and are re-employed within 1 year of your separation date to a permanent appointment at a different duty station, you are eligible for relocation allowances, subject to the distance requirement limitation. (See part 284.)

#### 244 Several family members employed by the Postal Service

If two or more members of an immediate family are entitled to relocation allowances under these regulations, the authorized relocation allowances will apply only to the member specified on Form 178, Specific Travel Order - Relocation & Relocation Agreement (see Exhibit 244). The other member is eligible as a family member only.

#### 245 Taking relocation leave

If you are eligible for relocation allowances, you are entitled to a maximum of 5 days of leave with pay. This is administrative leave and is not to be charged to any other leave that you may be entitled to under existing policies, e.g., sick leave, annual leave. The granting of this leave is non-discretionary and in addition to any travel time; you should take the leave immediately before and/or after physically moving your household. If you are a new employee, or have transferred from another Government agency or the private sector, you do not qualify for this benefit.

# 250 Signing a Service Agreement

# 251 Definition

Before Form 178 is approved and any payments are made, you must agree to remain in the Postal Service for at least 1 year by signing the form (see Exhibit 244). This form states that you agree to remain at the newly assigned duty station within the Postal Service for 12 months after the effective date of transfer or appointment. A signed Form 178 for 12 months is required for each permanent change of station. No travel advance will be authorized unless you have signed Form 178.

#### 252 Your liability under the agreement

252.1 Leaving the Postal Service. While the agreement is in effect, you may leave the newly assigned duty station only for the benefit of the Postal Service, as determined by an officer. You may leave the Postal Service only for reasons beyond your control, if your leaving is acceptable to the Postal Service. If you decline to accept or to complete the transfer, you will become liable to repay any relocation benefits you have received.

252.2 Violation of the agreement. If you violate the agreement, you will have to pay back any money that the Postal Service has spent for your travel, transportation, and allowances, in accordance with Handbook F-16, Accounts Receivable.

252.3 Transferring before expiration of an agreement. If you are transferred a second time within the 12 months of your service agreement, you must sign a new agreement. The obligation period from any prior agreement(s) is void. If, for example, you are transferred for the benefit of the Postal Service after 6 months at a new duty station, you are obligated to remain in the Postal Service and to stay at the new duty station for 12 months. You are relieved from the 6-month obligation remaining from your earlier transfer.

#### 260 Withholding Tax for Relocation Expenses

#### 261 Relocation expenses subject to Federal income tax withholding

**261.1 Relocation payments.** Transactions related to relocation, including payments made by the Postal Service to the relocation management firm (RMF) for the transportation of your household goods, will be reported as income on your relocation Form W-2. Other reimbursements that are reported on your relocation W-2 include:

- a. Advance round trip expenses to seek housing;
- b. Temporary quarters expenses;
- c. En route travel expenses;
- d. Real estate expenses involving the purchase of your new residence (and sale of your old residence);
- e. Miscellaneous expense allowance payment; and
- f. Grossing up payments (non bargaining employees).

Under current Internal Revenue Service (IRS) regulations, up to \$1,500 of the combined advance round trip and temporary quarters reimbursement are not taxable. In addition, up to \$3,000 of the sale/purchase or lease termination reimbursements, reduced by the amount allowable for the advance round trip and temporary quarters expenses, are not taxable. Any and all amounts in excess of \$3,000 are taxable.

261.2 Withholding and reporting moving expense taxes. The San Mateo PDC withholds taxes at the rate of 20 percent, rounded to the nearest dollar. Actual tax liability is determined by you and the IRS at the time you file tax returns. The San Mateo PDC makes the computation (except on Field Inspection Service relocation vouchers). The Postal Service will supply you with a separate Form W-2, Wage and Tax Statement, as well as IRS Form 4782, Employee Moving Expense Information, for all relocation expenses.

# 262 Relocation expenses not subject to Federal income tax withholding

Certain relocation expenses are not subject to Federal income tax withholding. They are:

- a. Expenses for moving household goods and personal effects from the former residence to a new residence.
- b. Reasonable expenses, including meals and lodging, that you and your immediate family incur en route to the new residence.

# 270 Issuing Form 178, Specific Travel Order-Relocation & Relocation Agreement

Form 178 describes the relocation expenses to which you are entitled. The appropriate approving official at the new duty station issues and signs this form before you travel or ship your goods. (See Exhibit 244 for an example of a properly prepared Form 178.) If travel of family and shipment of household goods are authorized, it is indicated on Form 178. If you claim transportation for parents, the Travel Order must show that the parents are dependent, as described in part 234.

# 280 Limitations on Moving

# 281 Maximum time for completing your move

You should complete your move as soon as possible. You must complete all allowable travel and transportation within 3 years from the effective date (date reported for duty at your new official station) of your transfer or appointment. The time limit for real estate transactions is 1 year; however, this time limit may be extended for up to 2 additional years. (See part 612.)

#### 282 Time extension for military service

The period for completing your relocation may be extended for any time you spend in military service.

#### 283 Time extension for duty outside CONUS

If you are reporting for duty outside CONUS, the period may be extended for any time lost as a result of shipping restrictions.

#### 284 Distance requirement

To qualify for relocation allowances, the distance between your new duty station and your old residence must be at least 35 miles greater than the distance between your old duty station and your old residence.

#### 285 Exceptions to the 35-Mile Rule

Handbook EL-311, Personnel Operations, addresses "Community Involvement." Section 547.3 of the handbook states that if field division general manager/postmasters or MSC managers consider it necessary, they may require a newly appointed postmaster to relocate closer to the duty station post office. Under these circumstances, newly appointed postmasters are eligible for relocation allowances listed in section 221a. through 221h. The approving official may reduce or disallow allowances for advance round trips and temporary quarters, as specified in part 310 and section 520.21 of Handbook F-10.

# 290 Miscellaneous Expense Allowances

# 291 Non bargaining employees

You may claim \$1,000, regardless of marital/family status. The itemization feature is not allowed. (See Exhibit 291.)

#### 292 Bargaining employees

- 292.1 Various allowable expenses. You are eligible for miscellaneous expense allowances if you have been authorized a permanent change of station, regardless of where the old or new official stations are located. This allowance is to cover various costs associated with giving up a residence at one location and establishing a residence at a new location. Some of the types of costs that can be reimbursed under this allowance include the following:
  - a. Disconnecting and connecting appliances and utilities (except when these costs are claimed under household goods) and the cost of converting appliances so that they can operate on available utilities.
  - b. Cutting and fitting rugs, draperies, and curtains moved from one residence to another.
  - c. Utility fees or deposits that are non-refundable.
  - d. Forfeiture losses on medical, dental, and food locker contracts that are not transferable.
  - e. Automobile registration, driver's license, use taxes imposed when bringing automobiles into some jurisdictions, emission controls, and state inspection requirements.
  - f. Non-refundable or non-transferable contract costs incurred for private institutional care for handicapped dependents.
  - g. Telephone calls in connection to relocation.
- 292.2 Claiming an allowance without supporting documentation. If you do not choose to itemize expenses, you may claim the following flat allowance (see Exhibit 292.4):
  - a. \$150 for an employee without immediate family.
  - b. \$300 for an employee with immediate family.
- 292.3 Authorizing or approving claims in excess of flat allowance. The Postal Service may authorize or approve an amount for miscellaneous expenses that is greater than that specified, if you can support your request with an acceptable statement of facts and paid bills or other acceptable evidence justifying that amount. However, the total amount of your allowance may not be more than your basic salary at the time you report for duty, for 1 week if you have no immediate family or for 2 weeks if you have an immediate family. (You are encouraged to itemize expenses if the flat miscellaneous expense allowance does not cover your actual expenses and the amount does not exceed the criteria stated above.)
- 292.4 Claiming miscellaneous expenses. You must claim the miscellaneous expense allowance on Form 4871, Relocation Miscellaneous Expense Allowance Claim. (See Exhibit 292.4.) If you claim the standard allowance, indicate the allowable amount in the space provided on the form (Claiming standard allowance of \$------(either \$150 or \$300 depending on family status)).

- 292.5 What the allowance does not cover. Examples of the types of costs that are not reimbursable under this allowance include:
  - a. Losses in selling or buying real and personal property, and the cost of items related to those transactions.
  - b. Cost of additional insurance on household goods and personal effects while they are being moved to your new official station, or the cost of loss or damage to that property.
  - c. Additional cost of moving household goods and personal effects caused by exceeding allowable weight limits.
  - d. Costs of newly acquired items, such as the purchase price or installation cost of new rugs or draperies.
  - e. Higher real estate, income, sales, or other taxes as a result of relocating.
  - f. Fines for traffic infractions while you or your family are en route to the new official station.
  - g. Accident insurance premiums or liability costs in connection with traveling to your new official station, or any other liability you incur for uninsured damages from accidents for which you or a member of your immediate family is responsible.
  - h. Losses resulting from selling or disposing of personal property which you do not consider convenient or practical to move.
  - i. Damage or loss of clothing, luggage, or personal effects while traveling to the new official station.
  - j. Subsistence, transportation, or mileage expenses greater than amounts reimbursed as per diem or other allowances under these regulations.
  - k. Medical expenses resulting from illness or injuries to you or a member of your immediate family while en route to your new official station, or while living in temporary quarters at Postal Service expense.
  - l. Costs connected with structural alterations, remodeling, or modernizing living quarters, garages, or other buildings to accommodate POVs, appliances, or equipment; or the cost of replacing or repairing worn out or defective appliances or equipment shipped to the new location.
  - m. Expenses relating to animals.

#### 293 Exception

A commission (broker's fee) paid to obtain rented quarters is reimbursable as a miscellaneous expense in those areas where such a fee is the established practice, such as New York City.

A Travel Advance Possuret	_								
Travel Advance Request and Itinerary Schedule	Regular	Travel Order No.:	lvance Round Trip)						
moster Mencel		601948-0-	201						
Name of Traveler (First, M.I., Last)		Social Security Number							
John A. Doe Travel Dates		987-65-4 Finance Number	321						
From: 10-15-40 To: 10-24-90		601948							
Official Duty Station Address									
USPS; Budget + Financial Analysis; 315 West Pershing Rd.;	KC MO 6	1108-95-21							
TRANSPORTATION			Estimated Cost						
Mode of Transportation and Company Origin Date & Time	Destination	Date & Time	\$						
		10 15 90 1: 23 pm	* 448.00						
2. Moce of Transportation and Company  Air USA Air   Wash. Nat'l 10/24/90 Gilsm	Despration KCI 10/24/		448,00						
LODGING									
Establishment Name and Address	Telephone Numbe	r							
Trump Inn 8700 Hotel Rd.	(301)585-x		673.20						
2. Establishment Name and Address	Telephone Numbe	•							
List other legs of your trip and any other lodging									
Car Renial Company Rate	Number of Days								
All Cars Rental 23 daily	9		207.00						
Pov milege to KCI (Round trip) 64 mi @ # 24			15.36						
Tot made at the control of the contr		····							
Per Diem: Englange 34 8.50 289.00	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·								
High Cost Spouse 34 periods x rate (_38 = 216, 92 Employee			505.92						
Average Cost_Spesse periods x rate 4.89			11.38						
SUBTOTAL			\$ 2,308.86						
Deduct Amount Charged to Personal Credit Card(s) and for Diners Club GTS Account			1,						
		,	177						
NET ADVANCE REQUESTED			\$ 532.66						
It is a secent offerse, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 1711, for the recipient of funds requested on this form to utilize the monies for an quested, Falser to rend any monies owed for overdue softenous, when required to do so by the or Protatal Service regulations, 3100.00, the person will be fread on more than 1000.00 or improved for not more than one year, or both Linder 18 U.S.C. individual may be first of in a amount equal to the entrous of money involved or improved for not more than ten years or both in oric provides brustant to 31 U.S.C. 2001.	may be subject to fine a 711, an otherse involve	indior expresonment. Where the ng an amount greater then \$10	arriculti or value dive does not exceed LOC constitues embezziement and ar						
Signature of Travelor	<del></del>		Date						
Signature and Title of Approving Official			10/3/90						
Paul a. Trepel Controller-Field Division	1		10/3/90						
Amount Received (Signature and Date)									
The collection of this information is authorized by 39 U.S.C. 1001 and 2008. This information will be used to account for your of	ical duty travel and re	ocation expenses. As a routine	use. This enformation may be disclosed						

THE CONSIDER OF MINISTRANCE OF MALESCALES AND ASSOCIATED ASSOCIATE

Exhibit 223, Form 1011, Travel Advance Request and Itinerary Schedule



# Specific Travel Order – Relocation & Relocation Agreement Order No. 6 0 1 9 4 8 - 0 - 0 0 1 | Damender | Payee Name | First ALL Last|

issuing Office (Name and location) Office of Accounting )	Dept. of the C	ontroller	Holato-s.:1		Employee Cate	egory:  Non bargaining	Bargaining
. J		RELOCATION					
Present employees of the Postal S transportation, moving, storage exp in the interest of the Postal Service.	enses and other allow						
<ol> <li>In consideration of my receiving by agree to report to my newly a of twelve (12) months following to new official station.</li> </ol>	issigned duty station a	nd to remain in	the U.S. Postal	Service and at m	y newly assi	igned duty static	on for a period
I understand and agree that if I viconnection with my transfer shall						s Postal Service	as-benefits in
I further understand that the pro- acceptable to the U.S. Postal Se							
4. I have been advised of relocation cation, (as applicable), relating to		ad the appropria	te sections of i	Handbook F-12; R	lelocation-Po	olicy and/or F-1	I, PCES Reio-
Signature of Employee (Retired PCES and	PCES Surviving Spouse do	nct sign)			Date Complete	ed .	-
gohn a. Do	و				10-	1-90	
	OFFICIAL	DUTY STATI	ns ems/l) NC	d Address)			.:
Now Assets + Payables Koom 8800 USPS Headquarters 475 L'Enfant Plaze Washington, D.C. Frunce Number 601948	.,Sw	Reporting Date	315 V Kans	TY Financia Nest Pershi as City, M will reimburse al Bound Trip:	ng Roo 0 6410	id 8-9521	ed with the
Transfer Authorization  Change in station  New Appointse	"Retired PCES "PCES Surviving 5	•	Spouse J	oloyee 🔀 Spouse lob Search (PCES I Mode of Travel _	only) Oov/Air	and Air	
Family Members		_	ł	ry Quarters: No. of all household good			
Name	Relation	Age	□ Residence     □ Res	e Transactions			
Jenifer Doe	, Spouse	111111	Second a	elidomotile			
Janet Doe	Daughter		Transfer	emon elidom to			
James Doe	<u>50n</u>			Admini	strative App	rovai	***************************************
			Signature of Aut	norized Official	0		
			Ticle		<u> </u>	Date	<del></del>
			And so &	and Systems		10-3-	
The collection of this information is authorized by 30 to a congressional office at your request, to CMB for the enforcement agency for investigative or prosecute information relevant to a hiring, contacting, or licensiti	review of private ratisf legislation vial purposes; to a government a ng decision by the USPS; to an e g a formal EEQ complaint filed a	to a labor organization gency where relevant to spert or consultant und painst USPS under 25 f	n as required by NLRI o a hiring, contracting, or contract with the US CFR 1613; to an index	A: where pertinent in a leg or ficensing decision by th SPS to fulfill an agency fur penders Certified Public Ar	al proceeding to w w requesting agen scion; to the Fede scountant during a	which the USPS is a painty; to a government as ney; to a government as intal Records Center for an official audit of USPS	rity, to an appropriate pency in order to elicit storage; to the Equal 5 Snances; and to the

Exhibit 244, Form 178, Specific Travel Order-Relocation & Relocation Agreement

PS Form 178, October 1990

<b>1</b>
Name of Payer
John
Address of Offi
ALPSD;
⊠ I claim s
•
l hereby
🗌 l am app

# Relocation - Miscellaneous Expense Allowance Claim

Name of Payer (Frst. A	of Payee (Frst. M.), Last/ Social Security Number Specific Travel Order Number								
John A. Address of Official Outy	Doe	987-65-	4321	601948-0-001					
	sonon 8800; USPS Headquart	one: 475 L'Fa	fant Plaza S	W. Washington D.C	. 20260 -5211				
	d allowance of \$ 1,000,00		1477- / 4420, 4	,,					
	taim for miscellaneous expe		veens of the allow	shie mavimum /5.12 Part 2	901•				
☐ I am applying \$	•	outstanding adva		and maximum (1-15' berry					
Date		Nature of	Expense		Amount				
**************************************			······································		\$				
			W						
		······································							
Subtotal			<del></del>		\$				
Amount applied to outstanding advant	29				( )				
				Total	\$				
Signature of Payee	^	Date	Authorized Approving C	Official's Signature	Date				
golin a	. Doe	11/12/90	Herry a.	Smith	11/12/90				
Tipe of Payte	+		n 1 1	. 1. + ~ 0 11	C + 70.				
Accounte		ture of the chain (28 USC 251	General Manage	q C <u>rr - A SSELS 4 fay a b fes</u> or more than \$10,000 or improximent for n	الان الان الانتخاب الانتخاب المنتخب المنت				
267; id. 1001).	The state of the s								
to a congressional office at your law enforcement agency for shed information selevant to a hiring, it Employment Opportunity Commit	<ul> <li>a authertset by 36 U.S.C. 1001 and 2008. The request, to CARS by review of presse splid by sengative or presentational purposes; to a govern contracting, or learning decision by the USPS, asson for investigating a formal EEO complaint or the complete of Special Control for proceedings in Land relocation sessential.</li> </ul>	pistation; to a labor organizatio smark agency where relevant to to an expert or consultant uno filed against USPS under 29	in as required by NLRA; when o a hiring, contracting, or Scen ler contract with the USPS to I CFR 1613; to an independent	e pertinent in a legal proceeding to which the sing decision by the requesting agency; to a luffill an agency function; to the Federal Rec Centified Public Accounts to during an official	n USPS is a perty; to an appropriate government agency in order to elicit ords Certer for storage; to the Equal it audit of USPS finances; and to the				
PS Form 4871, Octob									

Exhibit 291, Form 4871, Relocation-Miscellaneous Expense Allowance Claim, Non Bargaining Employees



# Relocation - Miscellaneous Expense Allowance Claim

Name of Payer (First, M.		Social Security Number	'	Specific Travel Order Number	
John Q. T	raveler	123-45-6	789	601948-0-002	·
	counting; Dept. of th	· مال + م م م	176 ( C P. 1	01- 5.3.11-1:	ton. D.C. 20260-52
	allowance of \$ 300.00	LE COPICYONES,	TID L CATORC	T laza, SW, Was NISQ	Con., D.C. 20200-52
	laim for miscellaneous exper	ness incurred in ex	rees of the sllow	his maximum /E-12 Bart 5	100)÷
☐ I am applying \$	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	outstanding advan		tone maximont fraction cont.	
Date		Nature of E	xpense		Amount
				•	S
					<del></del>
		·····			
					<del> </del>
			***************************************		<del> </del>
	: 				
					<u> </u>
					<u> </u>
Subtotal					\$
Amount applied to outstanding advance					( )
Costa Ning acres			<del></del>		1
				Total	\$
Signature of Payer		Date	Authorized Approving	Official's Signature	Dete
90hn C	. Traveler	3/1/91	Xxorge a	. South	3/1/91
Go of Payer			General Mana		
Account			Assets & Paya	les Systems Division	
mudulers Claim—Familication : 67; id. 1001).	of an item is an expense account works a fortel	have of the chains (28 USC 2514	i) and may result in a time of s	et more than \$10,000 er imprisonment for :	er more than 5 years or both (18 USC
he collection of this information	is authorized by 39 U.S.C. 1001 and 2006. Th	is information will be used to a	court for your efficial dury to	rvel and relocation expenses. As a routine	ps. this information may be disclosed
P & congressional diffice at your Bir enforcement agency for inve	request, to OMB for review of private railed by exignative or prosecutorial purposes; to a govern	atient stiench sipme sejamen j	a hiring, contracting, or Scor	and georgiou ph the indressing sciench, to	e government agency in order to elicit
<b>MODERNMENT CONCINUATE COMM</b>	contracting, or ficensing decision by the USPS; ession for investigating a formal EEO complaint	Sed against USPS under 29:	CFR 1613; to an independent	Certified Public Accountant during an offic	in audit of USPS financial and to the
fork System Protection Board of or be reinbursed for your savel	or Office of Special Coursel for proceedings in and relocation expenses.	voving possible prohibited per	some practice. The complet	on or this form is voluntary, however, if this	information is not provided, you may
S Form 4871, Octob	er 1990				

Exhibit 292.4, Form 4871, Relocation-Miscellaneous Expense Allowance Claim, Bargaining Employees

Handbook F-12, June 1991 15

# Chapter 3 Advance Round Trip and En Route Travel

# 310 Taking an Advance Round Trip

#### 311 General rule

When circumstances warrant, the appropriate approving official may authorize travel and expenses for one round trip for the purpose of seeking a permanent residence or mobile home site at the new official station. You may take this trip with your spouse or either of you may take it alone. If you take this trip, you must take it before you report to your new official duty station. If your spouse takes this trip instead of you, he or she must take it before your family moves to the new duty station, but not later than 2 years from your reporting date. New employees and their spouses will not be allowed an advance round trip unless an officer of the Postal Service authorizes it.

#### 312 What will and will not be authorized

- 312.1 Authorizing the advance round trip. The advance round trip is for the purpose of locating permanent housing. In deciding whether to authorize an advance round trip, the approving official will consider whether the trip will limit time you spend in temporary quarters. If an advance round trip is authorized, you must meet all of the following requirements:
  - a. You have formally agreed to transfer to the new duty station; and
  - b. You have signed Form 178 and it is on file.
- 312.2 Amount of time for the advance round trip. The Postal Service will allow a reasonable amount of time for the advance round trip, considering the distance between old and new duty stations, the mode of transportation to be used, and the housing situation at the new location. In no case will the Postal Service pay for an advance round trip of more than 10 consecutive calendar days (9 nights of lodging), including travel time. In authorizing a mode of transportation, the Postal Service will allow for minimum time en route and maximum time at the official station locality. You will be on working status during the period of absence for the approved round trip and will not be charged leave.

Note: Non bargaining employees are allowed two round trips, if necessary. Each trip can not exceed 10 days and 9 nights.

- 312.3 Authorizing a POV. If the Postal Service authorizes the use of a POV, your mileage will be reimbursed at the mileage rate shown in Appendix B, part 1. B.
- 312.4 Authorizing local transportation. The Postal Service will allow reasonable expenses for local transportation in the locality of the new official duty station. However, you should request that realtors provide transportation when helping you locate a new home. While use of a POV or public transportation where applicable is encouraged, claims for expenses related to the use of rental cars or taxis may be reimbursed. However, you should always obtain the lowest cost rentals.

312.5 Claiming per diem, lodging, and personal phone calls home expenses for the advance round trip. If you or your spouse take the advance round trip alone, you may claim the quarterly per diem (see Appendix B) and actual lodging expenses. If you and your spouse take the advance trip together, subsistence is as follows:

- a. For you: Standard quarterly per diem plus actual lodging.
- b. For your spouse: 75 percent of the standard quarterly per diem rate.

For advance round trips to Alaska, Hawaii, Puerto Rico, or United States possessions, per diem for you is allowed at the rate published by the Department of Defense in Civilian Personnel Per Diem Bulletins. Per diem allowance for your spouse is 75 percent of the rate allowed you.

One phone call home, per 24-hour period, may be reimbursed when the employee's immediate family does not accompany the employee (or the employee does not accompany the immediate family) on the advance round trip. The length of the reimbursable phone call may not exceed 5 minutes. The least expensive means of placing the phone call must be used, when possible. Postal Service owned or leased phone lines may be used for placing these calls. If Postal Service owned or leased lines are not used for these calls, you may claim the expense on your Form 1012, *Travel Voucher* (no receipts are necessary). Questionable costs may be subject to challenge or request for clarification by approving officials.

312.6 Declining the transfer. If, after making an advance round trip, you decline the transfer, you must repay the Postal Service for all travel and transportation expenses for the trip.

# 320 En Route Transportation Expenses

When an employee or new appointee uses a POV for traveling to the new duty station, this use is considered advantageous to the Postal Service. Mileage will be reimbursed at the rates listed in Appendix B.

# 330 General Rules on Subsistence Expenses

# 331 Driving distance requirement

The Postal Service will pay per diem allowances on the basis of total time required to complete the trip. You must average a driving distance of at least 300 miles per day.

#### 332 Computing per diem for minimum driving distance

When computing the per diem amount for a prescribed minimum driving distance per day, the Postal Service will allow one quarter of per diem for each one-fourth of the prescribed minimum driving distance. Thus, you would be entitled to one per diem period for each 75 miles or fraction of it.

#### 333 Deviating from the acceptable route

If the actual travel involves departure and/or destination points other than the old and new residence, the mileage reimbursement and per diem allowance may not exceed the amount which would be paid for the trip from the old official station to the new official station.

# 334 Personal phone calls home while en route

One phone call home, per 24-hour period, may be reimbursed when the employee and the employee's immediate family do not travel to the new duty station at the same time. The length of the reimbursable phone call may not exceed 5 minutes. The

least expensive means of placing the phone call must be used, when possible. Postal Service owned or leased phone lines may be used for placing these calls. If Postal Service owned or leased lines are not used for these calls, you may claim the expense on Form 1012 (no receipts are necessary). Questionable costs may be subject to challenge or request for clarification by approving officials.

# 335 Amount of allowable subsistence expense for en route travel

- 335.1 Expenses for lodging and per diem. You and your family, or your spouse and your family, are entitled to actual expenses for lodging, plus the following:
  - a. For you: Appropriate quarterly per diem rate.
  - b. For your immediate family members: 75 percent of your per diem rate.
- 335.2 Expenses for spouse when traveling alone. When your spouse is not accompanying you but travels at a different time, your spouse's per diem will be at the full quarterly standard per diem rate.
- 335.3 Exclusion for the 10-hour rule. The limitation provision that allows no per diem for travel less than 10 hours does not apply to en route travel. The per diem rate is listed in Appendix B.
- 335.4 Example of en route travel voucher. Refer to Exhibit 335.4 for an example of a voucher prepared for claiming this allowance. You must supply lodging receipts to support the claim on the travel voucher.

Handbook F-12, June 1991

Trav	el Voucher				
Fayer's Name (First, M.I., Last)	· .			Social Security Number	
John A. J	) o e			987-65-4321	
Assets & Payab	les Systems.	Division			
Room 8800					
U.S. P.S. Head	quarters				
475 L'Enfant	-				
Washington, D	.C. 20260-	5211	raval Order Relocation		
	(Date)	Applicable Spacific 11	9 VET CHORT HEIGGETION	Type of Reloca	TION
11/9/90	11/9/90 11/16/90 6019 Itstanding \$ 500.00 Amount to be app			En Route Tr	avel
		7 ra vel	Advance		
Outstanding \$ 500.00		Amount to be applied \$ 3	500.00	Balance to remain outstanding \$	-0-
Check One:				L	
Transportation (Air or Rail) p  [X] Personal Credit Card  [GTS (Credit Card – Gove	mmen: Transportation Sys				
FRAUDULEM CLAN-Fabrication of U.S.C. 2514) and they moult in a first mars, or both 118 U.S.C. 287; ic 1001).	en item is an expense account is of not more than \$10,000 or im	rons a lonerure of the claim (28) prisonment for his more than 5	AMOUNT CLAIME	<b>)</b>	Dollars Cents 843 /C
Signature of Payer Qohn Q.	Doe		Differences:		
Date		*Contino correct. Payment or Credit has not been received.			
Accountant	-		Total verified correct for cha	rge to expense	
Authorities approving Official's Signature A. Co.	Smith		Applied to outstanding trave	il activance	į
Gen. Mar. Ad Ps	5 <b>b</b>	Date 11 21 90	NET TO TRAVELE	R •	
Finance Number	Future Use	Sub-Location	Account	Amount	
60 1948			51242		
disclosed to a congressional office at your appropriate less entorcement agency for in in order to elici information relevant to a storage; to the Equal Employment Opport	r request; is: ONE for review of presentational puri- intering contracting or floarising it things contracting or floarising it manify Contractions or investigate Protection Board or Office of S a termburged for your travel and	victor relat legislation, to a labor ones; to a government agency at action by the USPS; to an expe- ing a forma! EEO complaint faild lowes! Counsel for proceedings.	organization as required by NLRA; here relevent to a Niring, construcing n or consultant under contract with against USPS under 25 CFR 1613	The arc recusion expenses. As a routine when partners in a legal proceeding to who, or learning decision by the sequesting agent, or learning decision by the sequesting agent USP's to staff an aperty thereton, to the USP's in thosevaters Certilian Public Account must practice. The completion of this form	ch the USPS is a party, to an ricy, to a government agency a Federal Records Center for tars during an official audit of

Exhibit 335.4 (page 1), Form 1012, Travel Voucher, Claiming En Route Travel Allowance

		L							lat	ure c	f Exp	ens	e						
		Mileage				Per Diem				Lodging			Car Rental			Transp.		Othe	r
1990	Expenses Claimed	No. of Miles	Rai 24 Amo	<del>f c</del>	No. of Periods High Avg.	Атюи	nt	Less Meals Furnishe Amount	e l	No. of Days	Amous	nt	No. of Days	Алюи	11	Air, Bus Train Fare Amoun		Amou	nt_
Nov.	Change of Official Station								7								Т		
٩	Old official Station- Kansas City, MO.		<del>                                     </del>	-				<del></del>	_						-	1	$\dashv$		Ť
	Kansas City, Mo. New official Station-			_											L	<del>                                     </del>	4		Ļ
	wash., D.C.						-	<del></del>	_								- 1		į
	LV KCMO via POA 1:00pm											_					1		Ī
	Lodging-Terre Haute, IN	433	103	72	2	13	00		_		42	50	-	-	<del> </del>	1-	$\vdash$		÷
	Phone call home LV IN € 8:00 am											_			_			z	ŀ
10	LV IN @ 8:00 am Lodging-Wheeling, WV	386	92	١.,	4	26				,	42	60		ĺ	į				I
		506		<del> </del>	7		-				76	1		<del>                                     </del>	-	1			Ť
	Phone call home LV WV 9:00 am		_	_								<u>!</u>	<u> </u>	<b>}</b>	<u>!</u>	1!	$\sqcup$	Z	4
11	Tolls				<b>-</b>	<del> </del>	╁		-			į		1		1		10	, Ì,
	AR Wash., b.C. 3:20 pm														Ī		П		i
	Phone Call home	281	67	44	_3_	19	50			_	<b> </b>	-	-	├	┝	-			¥
16	En route: Immediate Family											<u> </u>		<u> </u>	L				j
	Spayse				2	<del>                                     </del>	00	-					1	1	į				ļ
	•	<del>                                     </del>	├─	<del> </del>			1			_	<del> </del>	i	<del>                                     </del>	<del>                                     </del>	÷	+		<del> </del>	t
	Daughter	_	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	2	9	76					<u>Ļ</u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>				ļ
$\dashv$	Son				Z	9	76	-	_							} ;		ŀ	į
	LV KEL via USA Air 1245pm			-			-					Γ	Τ		T				1
	AR BWI 5:34 pm		-	<del> </del>	ļ		<del> </del>		_	-		Ļ	├	-	<del> </del>	+	H		ļ
	3 tickets @ # 124 ea.														L	372	00		i
_							-					-							-
_	POV mileage to KCI	-	┝	<del> </del>	<del> </del>	├	H	-	-	$\vdash$	<del> </del>	╁	╁─╴	$\vdash$	÷	+	<del> </del>	_	1
	•	20	4	30						1		Ļ	<u>_</u>		Ļ		L		_
	Pov mileage to 4 from BWI; AR at quarters	32	١ ,	68	├		<del> </del>	-	_	ł	ļ	į			ĺ		ĺ		į
	£ 7:15 pm .	-	<del>                                     </del>				士				-	T	T	$t^-$	t	†			1
_		<u> </u>	-	<u> </u>					_	<del> </del>	<b>├</b>	╀	╀—	┼	Ļ	<del> </del>	Ļ	┞	_;
			_	-			1		-	1		1	L		į		1		į
			Γ				L			Ī	Π	T	T	T	Ī	T	Γ		7
$\dashv$		-	├-	į-	<u> </u>	<del> </del>	<del> </del>	$\vdash$	-	┼	├	÷	+-	+-	÷	+	H	<del> </del>	-
			_							1_	<u> </u>	L		1	1		L	L	_
					ļ			-		-					1				
		-	┝				<del> </del>		_	<del> </del>	<del>                                     </del>	t	$\vdash$	t	÷	+-	十	$\vdash$	ᆤ
$\Box$			<u> </u>							<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u>!</u>			L	1	L		į
and Total	Ant. Substate  843 10 Inci Counts		276	١	15	91	١	1		2	١	00	1	1	1	372	١.,	18	1

Exhibit 335.4 (page 2), Form 1012, Travel Voucher, Claiming En Route Travel Allowance

# Chapter 4 Transporting and Temporarily Storing Personal Property

#### 410 Making Shipping Arrangements

#### 411 General

Non bargaining employees must use the services of a RMF for the transportation and storage of personal property. (See part 412.) Bargaining employees must make their own arrangements for transporting household goods and personal effects. (See part 413.) Parts 420 through 440 apply to both non bargaining and bargaining employees.

#### 412 Non bargaining employees

412.1 RMF services. The Postal Service has contracts with two RMFs to provide relocation services to non bargaining employees. The RMF will coordinate activities associated with the shipment of household goods, such as: (a) appointing a coordinator to review procedures with the transferee and establishing a moving date; (b) selecting a qualified van line and/or agent; (c) monitoring packing, loading, and arrival schedules; (d) resolving and processing any damage claims; (e) providing \$50,000 (maximum) current replacement value insurance on household goods; (f) transporting or arranging for the transport of a second automobile owned by the transferee or the transferee's immediate family (see part 422 for conditions); and (g) storing household goods up to 60 days, if necessary.

412.2 Activating the RMF. After obtaining approval of the relocation travel orders - Form 178 - and after the transferee signs the relocation agreement section, the responsible manager of the receiving installation in which the transferee is being reassigned must prepare Form 8059, Request for Relocation Management Firm (RMF) Service. (See Exhibit 412.2.) The form must be immediately transmitted to the Relocation Management Section, San Mateo PDC, 2700 Campus Drive, San Mateo, CA 94497-9420. The San Mateo PDC will contact the appropriate RMF coordinator, who in turn will contact the transferee to begin making the necessary arrangements.

# 413 Bargaining employees

413.1 Obtaining estimates. Bargaining employees must arrange for transporting household goods and personal effects. You must obtain at least two estimates from recognized professional moving firms and use the lowest estimate. You must attach copies of the estimates to any reimbursement voucher. If you do not use the mover that gives the lowest estimate, you must get advance approval from the approving official in charge of your new duty station. You must attach the justification and the approving official's written approval to the reimbursement voucher. If a voucher does not have copies of the two estimates and, where appropriate, the official's approval for using other than the least costly moving firm, the San Mateo PDC will reject the voucher until you provide the necessary documentation.

# 413.2 Determining the weight of property

413.21 How to figure crated and uncrated weight. When property is shipped uncrated, as in a household mover's van or similar conveyance, the net weight is the actual (gross) weight, including containers and packing materials. When the property is transported crated, the net weight is computed as 60 percent of the gross weight.

413.22 Relocation Policy

413.22 Constructive weight. If the gross weight cannot reasonably be determined, figure the net weight from the cubic measurement, on the basis of seven pounds per cubic foot. This is called constructive weight. If no adequate scale is available at the point of origin, at any point en route, or at the destination, you may use a constructive weight based on seven pounds per cubic foot of properly loaded van space. The constructive weight also may be used (a) for a part load when the weight could not be obtained without first unloading it or other part loads that are carried in the same vehicle; and (b) when the household goods are not weighed because the carrier computes charges for a local or metropolitan area move on a basis other than the weight or volume of the shipment. In these cases, however, you should obtain a statement from the carrier showing the amount of properly loaded van space required for the shipment. If you obtain neither an actual nor estimated weight certificate, you should include a letter of explanation with your claim.

#### 413.3 Weight limitations

413.31 Weight of household goods. The weight of household goods and personal effects which may be transported or stored at Postal Service expense must not exceed 18,000 pounds net weight, regardless of family status. If household goods exceed the authorized weight limitation, the reimbursable cost will be based on the following formula:

Authorized Weight/Actual Weight x Total Cost = Reimbursable Cost

Example: An employee transports 19,000 pounds, at a cost of \$1,900. The authorized weight is 18,000 pounds. The calculation for reimbursement is:

```
(Authorized weight) = 18,000 \text{ lbs.} \times \$1,900 = \$1,800
(Actual weight) = \overline{19,000 \text{ lbs.}}
```

Note: When an additional POV is authorized and you ship it with household goods, its weight is not included in the 18,000 pounds net weight.

413.32 Weight of professional books. If you ship professional books needed for performing your official duties, and the weight of these books causes the household goods shipment to exceed the maximum weight allowance, the professional books may be transported to the new official station as an administrative expense not chargeable to travel and transportation accounts. The appropriate approving official must authorize this shipment.

#### 413.4 Authorized points of origin and destination for shipments

- 413.41 Allowances/reimbursements that the Postal Service will pay. The Postal Service will pay allowances or reimbursements for transporting household goods regardless of origin and destination. The total amount reimbursable, however, must not exceed the cost of transporting the property in one lot by the most economical route from the last official residence of the transferring employee (or place of actual residence of the new appointee at time of appointment) to the new official residence.
- 413.42 Expenses that the Postal Service will not pay. The Postal Service will not allow expenses for transporting property acquired en route.

#### 413.5 Renting a U-Haul-type trailer or van

- 413.51 Documentation and reimbursement. If you choose to personally transport your belongings by renting a U-haul-type trailer or rental vehicle, the Postal Service will reimburse you for only the actual costs you incur. You must support your costs with receipts from the rental company and, where applicable, with receipts for fuel and tolls. Packing materials and other customary services and equipment supplied by the vehicle rental agency are reimbursable but must be clearly reflected on the billings that the rental agency provides. If you obtain packing materials or equipment from other than the rental agency, receipts are required.
- 413.52 Other incidental expenses. If you obtain advance written approval from the official who will approve the relocation voucher(s), the Postal Service will reimburse incidental expenses such as reasonable mileage driven to obtain the trailer/truck or manpower loading assistance from a commercial establishment (or elsewhere). In this case, you must submit acceptable documentation to the approving official.
- 413.53 Acceptable documentation. The documentation may be in the form of canceled checks or signed receipts, along with a copy of the advance approval. These papers must be attached to your reimbursement voucher(s).
- 413.54 Reimbursement limitation. The total reimbursement for these charges may not exceed the cost of commercial moving services.
- 413.6 Reimbursement for temporary storage. The Postal Service will reimburse expenses of temporarily storing household goods for a period of 60 days or less. The Postal Service may allow an additional period of 30 days when you return to your place of residence for leave before serving a new tour of duty outside CONUS at a different post of duty.
- 413.7 Insuring property. When property is shipped or stored, a small amount of insurance is usually included in the basic charges. However, you can get a larger amount of insurance if you pay the additional cost. The Postal Service will not reimburse this additional cost.
- 413.8 Expenses for temporary storage within CONUS
- 413.81 Temporary storage expenses. The Postal Service will reimburse you for the cost of temporarily storing household goods that are within the applicable weight limit. You will be reimbursed for the actual costs of storage, including in and out charges and necessary drayage (cartage).
- 413.82 Documentation you must supply. You must support your claim for reimbursement with a copy of the paid bill of lading, including a copy of any attached weight certificate, if one was issued. If there was no bill of lading, you must submit other evidence showing the point of origin, the destination, and the weight of the goods. You also will need to submit a copy of the paid bill for any storage costs.

# 420 Transporting POVs

# 421 Conditions for transporting a POV

The Postal Service may authorize transportation of a POV in connection with a transfer or assignment to a new official duty station. This authorization will only be made if you bought the vehicle before you became aware that you would be assigned to a new duty station to which the transportation of a vehicle would be authorized.

# 422 Conditions for transporting more than one POV

Under any of the following circumstances, the Postal Service may authorize moving more than one POV:

- a. If there are more members of your immediate family than can reasonably be transported with luggage in one vehicle.
- b. If, because of age or physical condition, it is necessary to transport one or more members of your immediate family in one vehicle, and a second vehicle is required for the other members of the family.
- c. If you must report to the new official station ahead of members of your immediate family.
- d. If a member of your immediate family travels unaccompanied between authorized points other than those for your travel.
- e. If your immediate family members, for an acceptable reason, must travel to the new official station ahead of your reporting date.
- f. If the Postal Service considers that the second vehicle is necessary at the new location for you to report to duty on a daily basis, i.e., both you and your spouse are employed and need to get to work or to commuter lines, or your new residence is inconvenient to public transportation.

## 430 Reimbursable Expenses for the POV

# 431 Costs of transporting an additional POV

- a. If you or a member of your family drives the additional authorized vehicle to the new duty station, mileage allowances will be at the rate listed in Appendix B.
- b. If it is impractical to drive the additional vehicle to the new duty station (because of weather conditions, distance, etc.), the Postal Service will (1) for non bargaining personnel, assign a RMF to provide services for shipping; or (2) for bargaining personnel, reimburse the cost to transfer one POV by rail, truck, driving service, or shipment with household goods. If the POV is shipped as household goods, the weight of the vehicle will not be included in the weight limitation. You will be reimbursed at the rate of the most economical method available. You must provide a cost comparison.

### 432 Costs of transporting POV(s) from/to outside/inside CONUS

When it is necessary to ship a POV, i.e., from Hawaii to the mainland and vice versa, the Postal Service will allow all necessary and customary expenses, including crating, packing expenses, shipping charges, and port charges for readying the vehicle(s) to be shipped from the port of debarkation. If you make a separate trip to a port to deliver or pick up the POV, the Postal Service will not allow per diem, but will allow one-way travel cost or one-way mileage.

## 440 Transporting Mobile Homes-Receiving an Allowance

If you are entitled to have your household goods transported, you may choose to take an allowance for transporting a mobile home that you will use as a residence. Before you can receive this allowance, you must certify in writing on the travel voucher that you and your immediate family will live in the mobile home at your destination.

Note: Allowances for transporting mobile homes are in addition to payment of per diem, mileage, and transportation expenses for you and your immediate family.

#### 441 Computing distances

In transporting a mobile home in CONUS, your claim for reimbursement will be limited to mileage via the most direct route from your former residence to your new residence.

# 442 Computing allowances

- 442.1 Transportation by a commercial carrier limitations. The allowance includes the carrier's charges for blocking and unblocking and for actually transporting the mobile home, not to exceed the applicable tariff approved by the Interstate Commerce Commission (or appropriate State regulatory body for intra-state movements) for transporting a mobile home. This allowance also includes the following:
  - a. The carrier's charges for preparing the mobile home for movement, unblocking, unskirting and setting up at destination, re-blocking, and reskirting. You must attach a copy of a paid bill to the travel voucher.
  - b. Ferry fares and bridge, road, and tunnel tolls.
- c. Taxes, charges, or fees fixed by a State or other government authority for permits to transport mobile homes in or through its jurisdiction, and carriers' service charges for obtaining necessary permits.
- 442.2 Nonreimbursable items. Allowances do not include costs of maintenance, repairs, storage, insurance for valuing the home above the carriers' maximum responsibility, or certain charges designated in the tariffs as "Special Service." (These would include such special services as packing and unpacking, which are necessary or desirable but which, unlike pilot cars required by State law, are not essential to transporting a mobile home from point to point.)
- 442.3 Transportation by other than commercial carrier. If, instead of using a commercial carrier, you tow the mobile home with a POV, the Postal Service will pay 11 cents per mile to cover all transportation costs for the mobile home. Thus, you would not claim ferry fares, bridge, road, tunnel tolls, and other charges as separate expenses. If you have not already been paid for travel to your new official duty station, you may claim the 11 cents per mile in addition to the standard mileage rate you claim for the POV.
- **442.4 Mixed method transportation.** If you use a commercial carrier and towing for transportation, you must follow the rules in sections 442.1 and 442.3 for determining reimbursement.

#### 443 How much you may claim

The total amount that the Postal Service will pay for transporting a mobile home will not be more than the maximum amount that would have been allowed for transporting household goods and storing them for 60 days.



# Request for Relocation Management Firm (RMF) Service

RELOCATION MANAGEMENT SECTION SAN MATEO POSTAL DATA CENTER 2700 CAMPUS DRIVE SAN MATEO CA 94497-9510

ABTITIC OF T	ransieree		Office Commercial Number				
Joh	in A. Doe		(202) 268-xxx				
ocial Sec	urity Number		Office PEN Number				
987	-65-4321		(202)268-x0x0				
iew B/A		New Finance Number	Home Number				
7 <i>F</i>	•	60 1948	(301) 585-XXX				
aaress of	Old Residence (for RM	F to pick up household goods)	Address of New Residence (for RMF to deliver household goods) If Available				
3 K	<sup>7</sup> 900 <i>Pase</i> o Yansas City, M	10 64110-3251					
Assets Room i USPS - 475 L'	Headquarters Enfant Plaza,S	LJ	New Office Number  (202) 268 - OXXX  Employee's Reporting Date				
Assets Room USPS - 475 L' Washi	4 Payables Syst 8800 Headquarters Enfant Plaza,S naton, D.C. S	ฟ 20260-5211	(202) 268 - OXXX				
Assets Room i USPS - 475 L' Washi Chec	4 Payables Syst 8800 Headquarters Enfant Plaza,S naton, D.C. S	LJ	(202) 268 - OXXX Employee's Reporting Date				
Assets Room i USPS - 475 L' Washi Chec	4 Payables Systissoo Headquarters Enfant Plaza,S naton, D.C. s k the appropriate	ฟ 20260-5211	(202) 268 - OXXX Employee's Reporting Date				
Assets Room i USPS - 475 L' Washi Chec	of Payables Systems  Beadquantens  Enfant Plaza, S  naton, D.C. s  k the appropriate  ested  Household  Goods	wozue-5211 box(es) for the services	(202) 268 - 0XXX Employee's Reporting Date 11 - 12 - 90				

Exhibit 412.2, Form 8059, Request for Relocation Management Firm (RMF) Service

# Chapter 5 Temporary Quarters

# 510 Allowances for Temporary Quarters

#### 511 Definition

Temporary quarters refers to any lodging obtained from commercial sources which you and/or your immediate family members occupy temporarily. Quarters are not temporary if the lease is for more than 60 days. In addition, quarters are not considered temporary if you move your household goods into them. Temporary quarters are meant to be used only until you can move into a permanent residence.

## 512 Conditions and limitations on temporary quarters

- 512.1 Lodging with friends or relatives. You will not be reimbursed for temporary quarters lodging expenses if you stay with friends or relatives.
- 512.2 Occupying temporary quarters that become the permanent residence. If you occupy temporary quarters that eventually become your permanent residence, you may be paid a temporary quarters allowance if you can show that you initially intended the quarters to be only temporary. The approving official will consider such factors as: the duration of the lease, whether you moved household effects into the quarters, the type of quarters, expressions of intent, attempts to secure a permanent dwelling, and the length of time you occupied the quarters.
- 512.3 Renting. If you rent a residence you are arranging to buy at the new station, the residence may be considered temporary quarters until you have closed the purchase transaction or until the allowable time limit for temporary quarters expires, whichever occurs first. The maximum that the Postal Service will allow is the actual rental fee (no subsistence is allowed) or the maximum amount allowable in parts 533 or 534, whichever is less. You must show cost comparison on the travel voucher.
- 512.4 Determining temporary quarters starting/ending periods. When computing temporary quarters allowances, you must consider the following:
- 512.41 En route 24 hours or more. If your en route travel takes 24 hours or more, and you begin to occupy temporary quarters on the same day that the en route travel ends, the first per diem period for temporary quarters will be the calendar day quarter after the last calendar day quarter for which travel per diem is paid.
- 512.42 En route 24 hours or less. If your en route travel takes 24 hours or less, and you begin to occupy temporary quarters on the same day that the en route travel ends, the first per diem period for temporary quarters will be the calendar day quarter during which travel per diem ends.
- 512.43 All other cases. In all other cases, the period will be computed from the beginning of the calendar day quarter for which you claim reimbursement for the temporary quarters subsistence, provided you or your family occupies the quarters in that calendar day.
- 512.44 Occupying permanent quarters. On whatever day within the authorized temporary quarters period you begin to occupy permanent quarters, the temporary quarters period will be continued for that day.

512.5 Exception-daily commuting instead of temporary quarters. If you wish to commute daily to and from the residence at your former duty station during the 60-day period (for non bargaining employees) or 30-day period (for bargaining employees) allowed for temporary quarters, instead of renting temporary quarters, you must request an exception from the approving official for your travel voucher. The request for exceptions of this nature must originate with you and must be routed through the appropriate chain-of-command. Each member of the chain-of-command must attach a recommendation to your request. If the exception is allowed, it cannot be for more than 60 consecutive days (for non bargaining employees) or 30 days (for bargaining employees). Reimbursable costs must not exceed the cost of temporary quarters for 60 days or less (for non bargaining employees) or 30 days or less (for bargaining employees) at your new duty station. You must include a detailed cost comparison as part of your request. In addition, you must include lodging costs as if you had used temporary quarters and had claimed per diem versus mileage at the current travel mileage allowance.

Note: The official who has the authority to approve the employee's travel voucher makes the final decision on these requests for exception.

# 520 Limitations on Temporary Quarters

# 521 When you must begin using temporary quarters

You must begin using temporary quarters no later than 60 days (for non bargaining employees) or 30 days (for bargaining employees) from the date:

- a. You report for duty at your new official station; or
- b. Your family moves out of the residence at your old official duty station.

#### 522 Authorizing expenses for temporary quarters

- 522.1 Temporary quarters time period. The appropriate approving official may authorize subsistence expenses for temporary quarters for a maximum of 60 consecutive calendar days (for non bargaining employees) or 30 days (for bargaining employees). If temporary quarters are occupied for any part of a day, it counts as one day of the authorized maximum number of days. The approving official may reduce or disallow allowances for temporary quarters if:
  - a. You have made a round trip to seek permanent residence quarters; or
  - b. As a result of extended temporary duty at the new official station (detail) or other circumstances, you have had the opportunity to make arrangements for permanent quarters; or
  - c. The approving official determines that you have had enough time to find permanent quarters.
- 522.2 Interruption of temporary quarters. The 60 consecutive days (for non bargaining employees) or 30 consecutive days (for bargaining employees) may be interrupted only for the following reasons:
  - a. Time spent in official travel status.
  - b. Scheduled vacation leave that the employee cannot change.
  - c. Other extenuating circumstances over which the employee has no control, such as a death in the family.

#### 523 Trips home during time period for temporary quarters

523.1 Return trips home. A weekend trip home for personal reasons does not end your temporary quarters allowance. However, the days home are counted toward the total 60 days (for non bargaining employees) or 30 days (for bargaining employees).

523.2 Limitation on reimbursements during return trips home. The Postal Service does not allow subsistence expenses while you are at home. However, if you can show by cost comparison that the round-trip expenses would not be greater than expenses incurred while in the temporary quarters site, the Postal Service may reimburse you for the costs of traveling home and returning to the temporary quarters. You must discuss this with the official who approves the voucher before arbitrarily returning home and subsequently claiming related expenses.

## 524 Occupying temporary quarters in more than one location

You may occupy temporary quarters at one location while members of your immediate family occupy quarters at another location. However, the temporary quarters period will end when you or your immediate family occupies permanent residence quarters, or when the allowable time limit for temporary quarters expires, whichever occurs first.

# 530 Allowable Reimbursement for Temporary Quarters

# 531 Reimbursement for actual subsistence expenses and personal phone calls home

You will be reimbursed for actual subsistence expenses you incur while in temporary quarters, up to the maximums set forth in parts 533 and 534. The subsistence expenses you claim must be related to temporary quarters and must be necessary to one's existence, such as food, laundry, or dry cleaning. Subsistence items basically include only consumable food products. Subsistence expenses do not include items of clothing, toothpaste, toothbrushes, razor blades, hair care products, small kitchen appliances, etc. You will not be reimbursed for any expenses for local transportation while you occupy temporary quarters.

One phone call home, per 24-hour period, may be reimbursed when the employee's immediate family does not occupy temporary quarters with the employee. The length of the reimbursed phone call may not exceed 5 minutes. The least expensive means of placing the phone call must be used, when possible. Postal Service owned or leased phone lines may be used for placing these calls. If Postal Service owned or leased lines are not used for these calls, you may claim the expense on your travel voucher, Form 1012 (no receipts are necessary). Questionable costs may be subject to challenge or request for clarification by approving officials.

#### 532 Obtaining required receipts

You must obtain receipts for each item of subsistence expense in excess of \$15, including food (receipts from grocery stores), meals, lodging, dry cleaning, and laundry. If you enter into arrangements for leased lodging and claim temporary quarters lodging expenses for the period in which the lease is in effect, you must submit a copy of the lease agreement with each voucher.

## 533 Computing the maximum-bargaining employees

- 533.1 Temporary quarters subsistence expense. If you are a bargaining unit employee, the amount you may be reimbursed for subsistence expenses for temporary quarters in CONUS will be the lesser of either (a) the actual amount of allowable subsistence expense you incur for each 10-day period; or (b) the maximum amount computed as follows (a standard lodging rate of \$25 will be used to compute the temporary quarters allowance):
  - a. Daily rate for the first 10 days:
    - (1) For you, three-quarters of the sum of the per diem and standard lodging rate.
    - (2) For each member of your immediate family, two-thirds of the rate established for you.
  - b. Daily rate for the second 10 days:
    - (1) For you, two-thirds of the daily rate established in a(1).
    - (2) For each member of your immediate family, two-thirds of the rate established in a(2).
  - c. Daily rate for the third 10 days and for any portion of an authorized additional 30-day period:
    - (1) For you, one-half of the daily rate established in a(1).
    - (2) For each member of your immediate family, one-half of the daily rate established in a(2).
- 533.2 Family entering temporary quarters subsequent to employee. If you occupy temporary quarters and are subsequently joined by your family, the family rates allowed will be the rate for the 10-day period that you are in at the time your family comes into the temporary quarters.
- 533.3 Per diem outside CONUS. When you are transferred to or between stations located outside CONUS, the sum of the per diem and standard lodging allowance should be replaced with the per diem authorized by the Department of State or Department of Defense, whichever applies.
- 533.4 Claim for subsistence expenses-temporary quarters. When you claim reimbursement for occupying temporary quarters, use Form 4872, Claim for Subsistence Expenses-Temporary Quarters. (See Exhibit 533.4.) Add together all allowable subsistence expense items for each 10-day period you claimed.
- 533.5 Limitation of reimbursement. The Postal Service will compare the total amount of your actual expenses to the maximum amount allowable for the period. You will be reimbursed for the lesser of these two amounts. See Exhibit 533.4 for a sample voucher.

Example: the sum of the per diem (average cost area = \$26) and standard lodging allowance (\$25) is \$51. If a bargaining unit employee, spouse, and one dependent child occupy temporary quarters for 15 days, the employee could claim actual expenses up to the maximum amount computed as follows:

1st 10 days	Employee, 10 days at	\$38.25	\$382.50
	Spouse, 10 days at	25.50	255.00
	Child, 10 days at	25.50	255.00
	Maximum allowable, 10 days at		\$892.50

2nd 10 days	Employee, 5 days at	\$25.50	\$127.50
	Spouse, 5 days at	17.00	85.00
	Child, 5 days at	17.00	<u>85.00</u>
	Maximum allowable, 5 days Maximum allowable, 15 days		\$297.50 \$1,190.00

# 534 Computing the maximum-non bargaining employees

534.1 Temporary quarters subsistence expense. If you are a non bargaining employee, the amount you may be reimbursed for subsistence expenses for temporary quarters in CONUS will be the lesser of either (a) the actual amount of allowable subsistence expense incurred for a 60-day period; or (b) the maximum amount computed as follows (a standard lodging rate of \$39.50 will be used to compute the temporary quarters allowance):

Daily rate for 60 days:

- a. For you, 80 percent of the sum of the per diem and standard lodging rate.
- b. For each member of your immediate family, two-thirds of the rate established for you.

**534.2** Limitation of reimbursement. The Postal Service will compare the total amount of your actual expenses to the maximum amount allowable for the period. You will be reimbursed for the lesser of these two amounts. See Exhibit 534.2 for a sample voucher.

Example: the sum of the per diem (average cost area = \$26) and standard lodging allowance (\$39.50) is \$65.50. If a non bargaining employee, spouse, and one dependent child occupy temporary quarters for 15 days, the employee could claim actual expenses up to the maximum amount computed as follows:

15 days	Employee, 15 days at Spouse, 15 days at	\$52.40 34.93 34.93	\$786.00 524.00 524.00
	Child, 15 days at  Maximum allowable, 15 days	34.33	\$1,834.00

- 534.3 Claiming subsistence expenses for temporary quarters. When you claim reimbursement for occupying temporary quarters, use Form 4872, Claim for Subsistence Expenses-Temporary Quarters. (See Exhibit 534.2.)
- 534.4 Per diem outside CONUS. When you are transferred to or between stations located outside CONUS, the sum of the per diem and standard lodging allowance should be replaced with the per diem authorized by the Department of State or Department of Defense, whichever applies.

-11011411	• •	uarters				
	ployee (First, M.L. Last)					
John	Q. Traveler					
cafic Travel Orde	er Number S	Social Security No.		Address of Official Duty Station Assets & Payables Systems Divis		
001948-	0-002	123-45-67	789		ion	
		Dane		INCOC MEADOUATTETS		
30	days	From 3/1/91 .	To 3/30/91	475 L'Enfant Plaza, SW Washington, D. C. 20260-5	211	
	× 12			Q sllowance for the period claimed		
BARGAI						
	First 10 day period: .					
	Employee	<b>)</b> :	No.	of days 10 x daily rate \$ 44.25	44	12.50
	Spouse	<b>)</b> :	No.	of days 5 x daily rate \$ 29.50	- S: 14	17.50
			n 2 v No	of days 5 x daily rate \$ 29.50	29	15.00
					- 8/	\$5.00
	1012) maximum wxpen	MAN STORAGE OF LEST	to carys			30.00
	Second 10 day period:					
	Employee	e:		of days 10 x daily rate \$ 29.50		15.00
	Spousi	P:	No.	of days 10 x daily rate \$ 19.67	s <u>i</u>	16.70
	Dependent	s: No. of dependent	ts <u>Z</u> × No.	of days 10 x daily rate \$ 19.67		
	Total maximum expen	ses allowed for Secr	and 10 days		s8	85.10
	Third 10 day period:				-	
	Employee	••	No.	of days 10 x daily rate \$ 22.13	,	ZI 20
	Soouse			of days 10 x daily rate \$ 14.75		47.50
			. 7	of days 10 x daily rate \$ 14.75	- "	95.00
		<ol> <li>No. of dependent</li> </ol>	35 <u> </u>	of days IU x daily rate \$ /T. /J	2	73,00
		مشاك ممة استنسالت محد				<b>ムオプ</b> の
	•		d 10 days	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	s <u></u> _	<u>63,70</u>
	•		d 10 days		s <u></u> _	
NON BA	•		d 10 days	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	s <u></u> _	
NON BA	Total for the three 10	day periods	d 10 days	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	s <u>.</u> 6	
NON BA	Total for the three 10	day periods	d 10 days		s <u></u> s <u></u> 2,4	
NON BA	Total for the three 10  RGAINING  Employee  Spouse	day perioda	No.	of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$	s <u></u> s <u>2,4</u> = \$	
NON BA	Total for the three 10  RGAINING  Employer  Spouse  Dependents	day perioda	No. No. × No.	of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$	s_6 s_2,4	
	Total for the three 10  RGAINING  Employer  Spouse  Dependents	day perioda	No. No. × No.	of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$	s_6 s_2,4	
NON BA	Total for the three 10 RGAINING Employer Spouse Dependents Total maximum expe	day periods	No. No. K. No.	of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$	\$ <u>2,4</u>	
	Total for the three 10  RGAINING  Employer  Spouse  Dependents	day periods	No. No. K. No.	of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$	s <u>6</u> s <u>2,4</u> ss	35.80
	Total for the three 10 RGAINING Employer Spouse Dependents Total maximum expe	day periods	No. No. X No.	of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$	\$ 6 \$ 2,4	35.80
	Total for the three 10 RGAINING Employer Spouse Dependents Total maximum expe	day periods	No. No. No. actual or maxim	of days x daily rate \$ of days x days of days x days of days of days x days x days of days x days of days x days of days x days x days of days x days	\$ 6 \$ 2,4	35.80
	Total for the three 10 RGAINING Employer Spouse Dependents Total maximum expe	day periods	No. No. No. actual or maxim	of days x daily rate \$ of days x days of days x days of days of days x days x days of days x days of days x days of days x days x days of days x days	\$ 6 \$ 2,4	35.80
	Total for the three 10 RGAINING Employer Spouse Dependents Total maximum expe	ctaiming lesser of Personal Calamed;	No. No. x No.	of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$	\$ 6 \$ 2,4	35.80
	Total for the three 10 RGAINING Employer Spouse Dependents Total maximum expe	ctaiming lesser of Personal Calamed;	No. No. x No.	of days x daily rate \$ of days x days of days x days of days of days x days x days of days x days of days x days of days x days x days of days x days	\$ 6 \$ 2,4	35.80
	Total for the three 10 RGAINING Employer Spouse Dependents Total maximum expe	citizences (SMPC	No. No. No. actual or musin	of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$	\$ <u>6</u> \$ <u>2,4</u> - \$ - \$	35.80
	Total for the three 10 RGAINING Employer Spouse Dependents Total maximum expe	e:  i: No, of dependent name allowed  Claiming lesser of Personal Calis Hot Total Claimed;  Differences (SMPC	No. No. No. No. No. No. Comparison of maxim	of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$ num expenses:	\$ 6 \$ 2,4 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	35.80
	Total for the three 10 RGAINING Employer Spouse Dependents Total maximum expe	e:  i: No, of dependent name allowed  Claiming lesser of Personal Calis Hor Total Claimed;  Differences (SMPC	No.	of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$ sum expenses:	\$ 6 \$ 2,4 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	35.80
PCES	Total for the three 10 RGAINING Employee Spouse Dependents Total maximum expe	claiming lesser of Personal Calimed; Differences (SMP)  Total verified corre Applied to employee (5	No. No. No. No. Sts x No.	of days x daily rate \$ y days x days y days x days y days x days	\$ 6 \$ 2,4 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	35.80
PCES	Total for the three 10 RGAINING Employee Spouse Dependents Total maximum expe  PCES enter actual exp	claiming lesser of Personal Calimed; Differences (SMP)  Total verified corre Applied to employee (5	No. No. No. No. Sts No. No. No. Sts No.	of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$ of days x daily rate \$ sum expenses:	\$ 6 \$ 2,4 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	453.80 17.55 451.35
PCES	Total for the three 10 RGAINING Employee Spouse Dependents Total maximum expe	claiming lesser of Personal Calimed; Differences (SMP)  Total verified corre Applied to employee (5	No. No. No. No. Sts x No.	of days x daily rate \$ y days x days y days x days y days x days	\$ 6 \$ 2,4 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	453.80 17.55 451.35
PCES	Total for the three 10 RGAINING Employee Spouse Dependents Total maximum expe  PCES enter actual exp	claiming lesser of Personal Calimed; Differences (SMP)  Total verified corre Applied to employee (5	No. No. No. No. Sts No. No. No. Sts No.	of days x daily rate \$	\$ <u>2,4</u> - \$ <u>2,4</u> - \$ <u>2,4</u> - \$ <u>2,4</u>	33.80 433.80 17.55 451.35
PCES  Page of Employ  Of Page of Page of Page of Account	Total for the three 10 RGAINING Employee Spouse Dependents Total maximum expe  PCES enter actual exp  PCES enter actual exp  RGAINING	cities and control of the control of	No.	of days x daily rate \$ y days x days y days x days y days x days	\$ <u>\( \alpha\) \( </u>	453.80 17.55 451.35 Date 4/3/q

Claim for Subsistence Expenses -

Exhibit 533.4 (page 1), Form 4872, Claim for Subsistence Expenses-Temporary Quarters, Bargaining Employees

PS Form 4872, October 1990

	,	Actual d	isliy subsist		ses were in		llow	. Required	receipts for	lodging, etc		ec	
Day No.	Date	Lodging	Magin	Clothing, Laundry & Country	Total	Personal Phone Calls Home	Day No.	Dena	Lodging	Meals	Clothing Laundry & Cleaning	Tetal	Personal Phone Calls Home
	3-1-91	38.00	16.31		5431	3.82	37						
_ 2	3-2-91	38.00	14.75		52,75	<i>3,8</i> 5	38						
3	3-3-91	38,00	13,00		51,00	3.12	29						
	3-4-91	38,00	15.75		53.75	3.57	۰						
5	3-5 -91	38,00	12.25		50.25	3.19	41						
	3-6-91	38,00	78.15		116,15		Q						
7	3-7-9	3₹,∞	85.33		125.53		0						
	3-8-91	38.00	85.19		123.19		44						
•	3-9-91	38,00	96,00	5,45	139.45		45						
10	3-10-91	38.00	90,17		128.17		44						
SUCRECULAR 10 Chays		380,00	504,90	5.45	892,35	17.55	67						
11	3-11 -91	58.00	54.95		92,95		4						
	3-12-91	38,∞	62.15		100.13		-						
	3-13-91	38,00	59.27		97,27		50						
	3-14-91	38,00	53.75		91.75		51						
	3-15-91	38.00	48.42		86.42		2			Ī			
	3-16-91	38.00	65.38		103.38		53	***************************************					
	3-17-91	38.00	71.17		109.17		54						
	3-18-91	38.00	43.26		81.24		5						
	3-19-91	38.00	46.90	9.00	115.90		56						
	3-20-91	38.00	6410	1.00	99.10	<b></b>	9		<b> </b>	i			
10 00/1	22-11	38000	584.33	9.00	975.33		9						
-	3-ZI - 91	38.00	43.35	7,00	81.33	<del> </del>	,		<del> </del>				
	3-22-91	38.00	57.45		95.45					<del> </del>			
-	3-23-91	38,00	61.29		49.29	<del> </del>	-						
_		38,00					ļ.						
-	3-24-91		44.42		82,42	ļ							
-	3-25-91	38,00	49,70		87.70	<del> </del>	i i						
	3-26-91	38,∞	53.66		91.66	<del> </del>	- E			<del> </del>	,		
	3-27-91	38,00	64.89	14.75	117.64		-		<u> </u>				
	3-28-91	38.00	47,88		85.88	ļ	-			ļ			
_	3-21-91	38,00	51.51		89.51				<u> </u>	<del> </del>			
	3-30-91	38,00	43,00		81,00	}		-	}	}	}		
0 4070		380,00	517.13	14.75	911.88	<del> </del>	-		<del> </del>	<del> </del>			
.*						<b> </b>	70	<del> </del>		<u> </u>	<del> </del>	<b> </b>	ļ
-						<del> </del>	7	ļ	<u> </u>	<del> </del>		ļ	
-						<b>}</b>	R	<b></b>	<b>}</b>	<b>}</b>			
-						ļ	73		<b> </b>			<u> </u>	
-*							74			ļ			<u> </u>
_=							73						
	Subtotal	1,140,00	1610,36	29.20	277956	17.55	L	Subtotal					
Actu	al Days in T				•		1	GRAND	1 140 00	1,610,36	29 20	2779.50	17.

\*Surprise Unit analogues ety
PS Form 4872, October 1990 (Reverse)

Exhibit 533.4 (page 2), Form 4872, Claim for Subsistence Expenses-Temporary Quarters, Bargaining Employees

Claim for Si	ubsistence Expenses -		
Temporary	Quarters		
Printed Name of Employee (First, M.L., Last)			
John A. Doe			
Specific Travel Order Number	Social Security No.	Address of Official Duty Station	
601948-0-001	987-65-4321	Assets & Ryables Systems Division	1
Penad Claimed for Temporary Quarters	Date	Room 8800 Plaza Sw	
30 days	From 11/12/90 To 12/11/90	U.S. Postal Service Assets & Ryables Systems Division Room 8800 475 Liftont Plaza, Sw Washington, D.C. 20260-5211	
	Computation of the maximum TO	allowance for the period claimed	
BARGAINING			
First 10 day period:			_
Employ		daysx daily rate \$=	5
Spor		f daysx daily rate \$ =	
		f daysx daily rate \$ =	
Total maximum exp	enses allowed for First 10 days	**************************************	.\$
Second 10 day perio	od:		
Employ	/ee: No. o	f daysx daily rate \$ =	\$
Spou	use: No. o	f daysx daily rate \$ =	\$
Depende	nts: No. of dependentsx No. o	f daysx daily rate \$ =	\$
Total maximum expe	enses allowed for Second 10 days		.\$
Third 10 day period:			
Employ		f daysx daily rate \$ =	s
Spou		daysx daily rate \$ =	
Depende		t days x daily rate \$ =	
		***************************************	
Total for the three 1	IO day perioda		*
			***************************************
NON BARGAINING		days 30 x daily rate \$ 58 80	- 17/400
Employ			
Spou		days 25 x daily rate \$ 39 20 -	
		days 25 x daily rate \$ 39 20 =	
Total maximum exp	enses sllowed		.s <u>.4,764.00</u>
PCES			
PCES enter actual e:	xpenses	**************************************	.\$
	Claiming lesser of actual or maximus	n expenses:	4.042.38
	Chiefficas (Shir DC 034)	**************************************	•
	Total verified correct (SMPDC use):		•
	Applied to outstanding advance;	**************************************	.()
	•		.\$
Sgnature of Employee	(Debt)	Authorized Approving Official's Significine	Date
John a. Wal	12/12/90	Hearge a. Smith	12/14/40
Accountant		General Manager-Assets & Payable	s Sustems Division
	C. 1001 and 2006. This reformation will be used to a	court for your official duty bavel and relocation expenses. As a routin	

Exhibit 534.2 (page 1), Form 4872, Claim for Subsistence Expenses-Temporary Quarters, Non Bargaining Employees

36

PS Form 4872, October 1990

Relocation Policy Exhibit 534.2 (page 2)

	7	<del></del>	T		T					lodging, etc			
Day No	Dese	Looging	Media	Ciothing, Laundry & Cleaning	Total	Personal Phone Calle Home	Day No.	Date	Lodging	Manis	Ciothing Laundry & Cleaning	Total	Personal Phone Call Home
,	11-12-90	38.00	26.15		64.15	3.82	37						
2	11-13-90	38,00	20.80		58,80	2.85	23						
3	11-14-90	31.00	19,95		57.95		39						
٠	11-15-90	38.00	17.32		5532	3,57	40						
3	11-16-90	78.00	23.35		61.35	3,19	41						
•	11-17-90	38.00	104,60		142.60		2						
ا:	11-18-90	38.00	83,20	Market	121,20		43						
1	11-19-90	38.00	79.80		117.80		44				·		
٠	11-20-90	38,00	93.40	19.37	150.77		45						
	11-21-90	31.00	123,19		161.19		44						
-							47						
*	II- ZZ-90	38.00	132.08		170.08		44						
		38,00	98.74		136.74		49						
13	11-24-90	38.00	112.25		150,25		50						
u	11-25-90	38,00	101.18		139.18		St						
13		38,00	97.77		135.77		22						
•	11-27-40	1	82.90	21.88			53						
		58.00	138.90	-1,0-	176.90		Sa						
_	11-29-90	•	117.06		155,04		55			<b>†</b>			
	11-30-90		92.24		130.24		56						
	12-1-90	7	126.66		14.66	l	57		<del> </del>				
		30,55	100,400		1,00.00	<b></b>	9		<b></b>	<b>†</b>			
-	12-2 -90	37.00	118.42		156.42		39		<del> </del>				
_		1	123.45		161.45		80		<del>                                     </del>				
	p-4-90	1			1		01		<del> </del>				
_	13-5-40	1	47.82	2/12	149.11		- R						
		38.00		A4.13		<b></b>	100		<b></b>	<del> </del>			
_	*				138.16	-			<b></b>				
-+	12-7-90		99,99		137.99	<b>}</b>	-	<u> </u>	<del> </del>				
	12-8-90		107.38		145.38				<b></b>				
_	p-9-90		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		171.14	<b>-</b>	60	<b>-</b>	<del> </del>				
_	B-10-90	38.00	117.56		155.56	<b> </b>							
	12-11-90	31.00	(3.43		174.43		+-		<del> </del>	ļ			
-						<b> </b>	*	ļ	<b> </b>			<u> </u>	<del>                                     </del>
-			,			<del> </del>	70	<del> </del>	<del>                                     </del>			<u> </u>	<del> </del>
-			· -				7		<u> </u>			ļ	<u> </u>
3							72		<del> </del>	ļ		ļ	
*							מ		<b> </b>	-			
킈							74		<u> </u>				<u> </u>
*							75						
	Sub total	614000	283700	<i>چچې</i>	404238	14,55	L	Subtotal	<u> </u>				
ctua	i Days in T	emporary C	warters:		-		1	GRAND	1 1440 00	2,857,00	4538	4042 3	16

\*Surprise Unit microsum etc.
PS Form 4872, October 1990 (Reverse)

Exhibit 534.2 (page 2), Form 4872, Claim for Subsistence Expenses-Temporary Quarters, Non Bargaining Employees

Handbook F-12, June 1991 37

# Chapter 6 Real Estate Transactions and Unexpired Leases

# 610 Conditions and Requirements

## 611 Reimbursement for settlement expenses

The Postal Service will reimburse you for allowable settlement expenses for:

- a. Selling one residence at your old official station.
- b. Buying or constructing one residence at your new official station.
- c. Settling an unexpired lease at your old official station either for the house in which you lived or for a lot on which you had a mobile home used as residence.

#### 612 Conditions for reimbursement

To be eligible for reimbursement, you must satisfy all of the following conditions:

- a. A permanent change of station has been approved and authorized for you; both stations are located within the United States and its possessions; and you have signed Form 178.
- b. The title to the residence (which may be a mobile home and/or a lot on which the mobile home is or will be located) at the old or new official station, or the interest in a cooperatively-owned dwelling or in an unexpired lease, is (1) in your name alone; (2) jointly in your name and in the name of one or more members of your immediate family; or (3) solely in the name of one or more members of your immediate family. For disposition of the property at the old duty station, you (or your immediate family) must have acquired the title or interest in the property before you were informed of the transfer. For ascquisition of property at the new duty station, you (or your immediate family) must acquire the title or interest in the property after you were informed of the transfer.
- c. The expenses of selling or of settling the lease are for your actual residence at the time you were informed of your transfer to your new official station.
- d. The settlement dates for the sale and purchase, or for terminating the lease, are not later than 1 (initial) year after the date on which you reported for duty at your new official station. If you submit a written request to the appropriate approving official before the end of the initial year, this time limit may be extended for up to 1 additional year.

Note: If you encounter unique and unusual circumstances, you may submit a written request through your installation or department head to the appropriate officer for a second extension of up to 1 year. You must submit this request well before your first extension period expires. Any further extensions must be processed using the deviation procedures described in part 180. You must specify exactly the efforts you have taken to market the property and provide documentation showing a continuous and reasonable effort to complete the transaction. Each manager in the chain-of-command must attach a recommendation with supporting comments. If an extension is approved, your office must immediately prepare an amended Form 178 and distribute it.

e. You actually paid the expenses. If the residence is a multiple-occupancy dwelling and you occupy only part of it, your expenses will be reimbursed on a prorated basis. In addition, your reimbursement will be limited to a reasonable amount required for the residence site. In no event will you be reimbursed for the purchase and/or sale of more than five acres.

- f. Sections 612c and 612d do not apply if you are a master instructor assigned to the Management Academy, Potomac, MD, and meet these three conditions:
  - (1) You are assigned to the Management Academy for 3 years or less;
  - (2) You did not sell your residence at your old duty station at the time you were assigned to the Academy, or while you were at the Academy; and
  - (3) At the end of the assignment, you did not return to your former duty station.

Note: The time limits for completing residence transactions in section 612d will be computed from the date you are assigned to the new duty station.

#### 613 Disclosure statements

You must support Form 4877, Reimbursement of Real Estate Expenses-Change of Official Station, with a copy of the disclosure statement required by Regulation Z issued by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System and the Truth in Lending Act. Title I, Public Law 90-321, for all charges made by the lending institution toward the purchase of a new residence.

Exception: A disclosure statement is not required when assuming the loan from the seller. A statement to this effect must be added to Form 4877.

# 620 Reimbursable and Non-reimbursable Expenses

#### 621 Overall limitations on reimbursement

621.1 Limit-10 percent of sales price. The Postal Service will reimburse you for allowable expenses incurred in connection with selling your residence at the old official station. The amount of this reimbursement, however, cannot be more than 10 percent of the actual sales price.

621.2 Limit-5 percent of purchase price. The Postal Service will reimburse you for allowable expenses incurred in connection with buying a residence at your new official station. The amount of this reimbursement, however, cannot be more than 5 percent of the purchase price.

# 622 Broker's fees and real estate commissions

The Postal Service will reimburse a broker's fee or real estate commission that you paid for selling your residence, as long as the fee or commission does not exceed customary rates for that locality. No such fee or commission is reimbursable when you buy a home at your new official station. If you or a member of your immediate family receives any compensation for performing brokerage/real estate services, you must deduct that compensation from the amount that you claim.

# 623 Other advertising and selling expenses

The Postal Service will reimburse the costs of advertising (newspaper, bulletin board, multiple-listing services, or other advertising) to sell your residence at your old official station if you have not paid for those services as part of a broker's fee or real estate commission.

#### 624 Costs of selling or buying a home

- **624.1** Legal and related costs of selling or buying a home. The Postal Service may reimburse certain legal and related costs of selling or buying a home. The costs must meet all of the following conditions:
  - a. They have not been included in brokers' fees, lawyers' fees, or similar expenses claimed elsewhere.
  - b. They are customarily paid by the seller in the area of the old official station or by the buyer in the area of the new official station.
  - c. They are not more than the amounts customarily charged in the locality of the residence.

# 624.2 Reimbursable costs. The following costs may be reimbursed:

- a. Title search.
- b. Preparing an abstract.
- c. Title opinion.
- d. Lender's title insurance policy.
- e. Preparing conveyances, contracts, and other legal documents.
- f. Notary and recording fees.
- · g. Surveys.
  - h. Drawings or plats required for legal or financing purposes.
  - i. Customary appraisal costs.
  - j. Title insurance purchased by the buyer in those localities in which it is not customary for the seller to furnish either a title opinion or title insurance, or for the buyer to obtain a title opinion.
  - k. Inspection fees (radon, termite, structural, etc.) required by the lender as a prerequisite to loan approval or required by Federal, State, or local statute or ordinance.
  - l. Loan origination fee (non bargaining employees only) associated with the purchase of a residence at the new official duty station. Limited to no more than 1 percent of the value of associated loan.
  - m. Postage/messenger fees charged for the delivery of documents to/from the agents associated with the sale or purchase (title company, lender, realtor, employee, etc.). Such fees must be stated in the closing documents and must have been paid by the relocating employee as part of the sale or purchase. Postage/messenger fees must customarily be paid by the seller of the residence in the locality of the old official duty station or by the purchaser of the residence in the locality of the new official duty station. Such fees must not exceed amounts customarily paid in the locality. The Postal Service will reimburse the actual amount of postage/messenger fees up to a maximum of \$60.00. Amounts claimed for reimbursement of postage/messenger fees must be itemized in section 7 of Form 4877. Documentation showing amounts paid must be submitted with your claim.
  - n. Attorney's fees for services required in the sale or purchase of the home. In all cases, claims must be accompanied by (1) an itemized breakdown for the services provided; (2) the fees for each item of service; and (3) a statement that each service for which claim is made is the accepted practice for the locality of the residence.
  - o. Similar legal costs as described in a-h.

Note: Attorney's fees are reimbursable only to the extent that they are not for services also performed by another party (lender, title company, etc.) for which reimbursement is being claimed. In some areas, the preparation of documents, recording of deeds and liens, and the closing are accomplished by the title company or the lending institution; no attorney services are required. In no case will attorney's fees be reimbursed for services provided solely at the discretion of the employee. Litigation costs are not reimbursable.

#### 625 Settlement costs

- **625.1** Reimbursable expenses. The Postal Service will reimburse the following settlement costs if they do not exceed the amounts customarily charged in the locality of the residence and they are customarily paid by the seller in the area of the old official station or by the buyer in the area of the new official station:
  - a. FHA or VA loan application fee.
  - b. Costs of preparing a credit report.
  - c. Mortgage and transfer taxes.
  - d. State revenue stamps and similar fees and charges.
  - e. Mortgage title insurance required by the lending institution to obtain a mortgage loan (commonly called lender's coverage).
- 625.2 Other reimbursable expenses. If you are selling a home and the terms of the mortgage or other security agreement include a prepayment penalty, the Postal Service will reimburse the penalty if you had to prepay the mortgage or other security agreement because you were relocating. In addition, the Postal Service may reimburse expenses for prepaying a second deed of trust which was executed after the initial financing of your home. If the terms of your mortgage or other security agreement specify the amount of the penalty or the basis on which the penalty is computed, the Postal Service will reimburse the full amount. If no specific amount or basis of computation is specified, the Postal Service will only reimburse an amount equal to 3 months' interest on the balance of the mortgage loan. You must furnish the appropriate documentation to support the amount of reimbursement you request.

# 625.3 The Postal Service will not reimburse the following settlement costs:

- a. Owner's title insurance (for exception, see section 624.2j).
- b. "Record Title" policy.
- c. Insurance against damage or loss of property.
- d. Interest on loans, points, and mortgage discounts.
- e. Loan commitment fee.
- f. Loan origination fee (bargaining unit employees).
- g. Loan assumption or transfer fee.
- h. Property taxes.
- i. Operating or maintenance costs.
- j. Tax services.
- k. VA funding fee (see section 625.1).
- 625.4 Finance charges under the Truth in Lending Act and Regulation Z. The Postal Service will not reimburse any fee, cost, charge, or expense it determines is part of the finance charge under the Truth in Lending Act and Regulation Z.

625.5 Constructing a house. If you are constructing a house, the Postal Service will reimburse expenses comparable to the expenses that would be reimbursable if you were buying a house.

## 626 Losses from market condition

The Postal Service will not reimburse you for losses resulting from market conditions and any similar losses.

#### 627 Expenses of settling unexpired leases

- **627.1** Reimbursement of unexpired leases. Expenses you incur for settling an unexpired lease (including month-to-month rental) on residence quarters you occupied at your old official station may include broker's fees for obtaining a sublease or the cost of advertising an unexpired lease. These expenses are reimbursable if all these conditions are met:
  - a. The applicable laws or the terms of the lease provide for payment of settlement expenses:
  - b. The costs cannot be avoided by subleasing or other arrangements;
  - c. You did not contribute to the cost by failing to give prompt and appropriate notice that you were terminating the lease after finding out that you were being transferred to a new official station; and
  - d. The broker's fees or advertising charges do not exceed those customarily charged for comparable services in that locality. You must itemize these expenses and enter the total amount on a travel voucher.
- 627.2 Claim for unexpired lease expenses. You must submit this voucher separately from the claim you make for expenses related to buying a home. You must support each item with a copy of the lease agreement and proof of payment.

# 630 Submitting a Claim for Reimbursement of Real Estate Expenses

# 631 How to apply for reimbursement and how to document expenses

- 631.1 Claim for reimbursement of real estate expenses. Prepare Form 4877 (see Exhibit 631.1). Enter the itemized amounts you are claiming in the appropriate spaces on the form. For each expense, attach documents showing that you paid the expense. Identify items claimed in item 4 on the reverse side of Form 4877.
- **631.2 Submitting Form 4877.** You may prepare a separate Form 4877 for sale and purchase expenses.
- 631.3 Documentation required to support real estate expenses. You must submit one complete set of legible, signed documents or copies of them to support the claim. Copies of the following documents must be included, if appropriate: (a) the sales agreement; (b) the purchase agreement; (c) property settlement documents; (d) loan closing statements; (e) invoices or receipts for bills paid; and (f) a copy of the disclosure statement required by Regulation Z and the Truth in Lending Act for all charges by the lending institution for the purchase of your new home.

## 632 How your claim will be reviewed and approved

- 632.1 Where to submit Form 4877 for review and approval. Submit Form 4877 with supporting documents to request reimbursement for sales or purchase expenses, for review, adjudication, and signature approval as follows:
  - a. Transfers to and from Headquarters: Submit to General Manager, Assets and Payables Systems Division, Department of the Controller, Headquarters. (This authority may be delegated only to the Acting General Manager, Assets and Payables Systems Division, Department of the Controller, Headquarters);
  - b. Transfers to and from Field Divisions: Submit to appropriate Field Division Controller. (This authority may be delegated only to the Acting Field Division Controller);
  - c. Transfers to and from regional offices: Submit to the General Manager, Accounting and Systems Compliance;
  - d. Headquarters-related field office transfers: Submit to the nearest associated city Field Division Controller; and
  - e. Inspection Service transfers: Submit to Regional Chief Inspector or Inspectors in Charge, as appropriate.
- 632.2 Review of real estate expenses. This review will determine whether the expenses claimed are reasonable and customarily paid by the seller/buyer in the locality where the property is located. If any expenses appear to be excessive, the expenses will be reduced or disallowed. The appropriate official will indicate whether the expenses are approved or disapproved on Form 4877.

## 633 How to submit a claim for payment

Forward approved Form 4877 and documentation for administrative approval and payment of your claim.

#### 634 Administrative approval

- **634.1** Approving official. The official who approves the travel for change of station will give final administrative approval of Form 4877. This official may accept as conclusive the required prior approval (see section 632.1) concerning reasonable and customary expenses.
- **634.2 Forwarding for payment.** After the appropriate official has given administrative approval, Form 4877 and supporting documents will be forwarded for payment in the usual manner.

#### 640 RMF Service for Home Sales

#### 641 Requirements

This program may be offered to EAS personnel, grade level 21 or above (Inspection Service personnel grade level 17 or above), through a deviation process only. Saved grade or save rate employees are not eligible. The following criteria must be met before your request:

- a. The title to the residence must comply with the conditions stated in section 612.b.
- b. The distance between the former residence and the new official duty station must be at least 70 miles.

- c. The residence must be marketed at a fair market value set by a knowledgeable real estate broker, and must be in line with local market conditions and recent comparable sales.
- d. The residence to be sold must be appraised at no less than \$50,000 and must be situated on no more than one acre of land.
- e. The residence has to be aggressively marketed a minimum of 120 days (a minimum of 60 days for Inspection Service personnel).

Note: Mobile homes, houseboats, and other similar residences are not eligible for consideration.

#### 642 Guidelines to follow when filing Home Sale Deviation

The employee must include the following with their deviation request:

- a. Copy of the purchase closing statement.
- b. The real estate broker(s) report on marketing efforts, which includes length of market time, list prices, concessions offeror, and copies of the advertisement.
- c. Copy of the recent property appraisal, if available. (A property appraisal conducted by a financial institution is not acceptable.)
- d. If readily available, photographs of the property and immediate area, and/or any other documentation which would support the request.

If the request is approved by the transferee's immediate PCES manager, all documentation with that manager's supporting comments must be forwarded to the Director, Office of Accounting, Headquarters.

The Director, Office of Accounting, will advise the transferee's immediate PCES executive of the final decision. If approved, the San Mateo PDC will be requested to initiate the RMF service for the transferee. Accordingly, all requests must include the employee's home and business telephone numbers, the exact address of the property, the BA code, and the finance number of the transferee's new duty station. Appeals on denials are not to be honored or directed "up the line."



# Reimbursement of Real Estate Expenses – Change of Official Station

ALLIN MANCE						
	(Foe Usesha	INSTRU ook F-12, Relocation Poli		TO Determine Defend		
Complete Parts I, II, and II totals on reverse.     Attach one complete set of a. Copy of sales agreeme b. Copy of receipt for any (credit report, appraisal d. Copy of disclosure stathe Truth in Lending Act	I of face and enter all app documents required to so nt between buyer and se etc.)  item claimed that is not setc.)	plicable amounts and support claim, liter. t on settlement sheet by Regulation Z and only).	3. Be sure y 4. Submit th National Field Divi & System tor in Ch signed by PDC for g	ou have signed the Employ is form with supporting doc Accounting Division, Dept. sion Controller (Field Divis is Compliance (Region), or arge (Inspection Service), I the appropriate approving	umentation to of the Contro ion), Regional Regional Chi as appropriate	the General Manager, iller (Headquarters); or I Manager, Accounting of Inspector or Inspec- b. When Form 4877 is
		I. EMPLOYEE	- CLAIMANT		·	
John A. Doe				Check Applicable Box if Earl Estate Expenses Submitted		
USPS: A+PSD: Roo	m 8800; 475 Li	Enfant Plaza, S	w: Washin	aton D.C. 2021	60-5211	
			FER DATA	· .		
Old Official Station		1	ecurity No.		Specific Travel	
Kansas City, MO	64108-9521		7-65-43		601948	-0-001
		III. RESIDENCE	PROPERTY DA	TA	·	
		Old Official Station		Nev	Official Station	•
Complete Address of Residence (Include Apt./Suite No. & ZIP+4)	5900 Pase Kansas Cit		-3251			
No. of Dwelling Units on Property	ı	77				
Sale and/or Purchase Price	# 89,700					
Date of Closing or Settlement	10/26/90					
Amt, of Expense Being Claimed	\$ 5,687.00	)				
Adjustments to Amount Claimed			~			
Amount applied to outstanding achience						
Net to Transferee	\$ 5,687.00					
		Employee	Certification			
I hereby certify that the amous was in my name and/or a mem						
Signature of Employee/]	$\wedge$		<del></del>	······································		Date
John a.	Wal					10/29/90
	newskie skier wie en	IV. APP	ROVALS: 300	State on the Contract of the	n Marian in the	y states in the w
A. Sales Expenses—The expenses—the expenses approved as being (1) reason seller in the locality where the part of the locality where the	able in amount and (2) property is located.	for above are hereby customarity paid by a d, Per Attached Memo	are hereby a paid by a buy	Expenses—The expense proved as being (1) reasons for in the locality where the local to the loca	property is lo	unt and (2) customanly cated.
Tipe of Approving Official (at former Controller - Field . Signature of Approving Official (at I Paul a. Transler	División	Date 		g Official (at new duty station) proving Official (at new duty sta	zion)	Debe
Funding Finance Number Approving		5/90	I) and may essuit in a	line of act more than \$10,000 or impr	isonment for not the	one When 5 years or both (18 USC
The collection of this information is authorize to a congressional office is pure require the enforcement agency for investigative or information relevant to a hiring contracting. Employment Opportunity Commission for information relevant to the confidence of Office of one the minimized for your travel and relacer PS Form 4877, October 1990	o OMS for review of private relief i prosecutorial purposes; to a gen- or licensing decision by the USP riversigating a formal EEO comple Special Counsel for proceedings stion experies.	legislation; to a labor organizatio enterent agency where relevant t 'S; to an expert or consultant und una filed against USPS under 29 I	n as required by NLR o a hiring, contracting or contract with the U CFR 1613: to an inde	A: where perfinent in a legal process or licensing decision by the request SPS to fulfill an agency function; to to pendere Certified Public Accountant	ing to which the UR ng agency; to a gov re Federal Records turing an official au	SPS is a party; to an appropries remment agency in order to elici Center for storage; to the Equal cit of USPS finances; and to the

Exhibit 631.1 (page 1), Form 4877, Reimbursement of Real Estate Expenses-Change of Official Station

lte	m Explanation	F	orme	r R	esider	100	New	Residence
١.	Brokerage Fees: The sales commission paid to a broker or real estate agent for selling former residence. Also, fees for listing a residence and payment for multiple listing service, if not included in commission paid to the broker or agent	\$		5.3	382.	00		
2.	Advertising: Expenses paid for newspaper and other advertising when a direct sale is made without the services of a real estate broker or real estate agent.	s		<del>-,-</del>				
	Appraisal Fee: The amount paid to a professional appraiser for establishing a suggested sale price for the residence	\$						
	Legal and Related Costs: The amounts paid for costs of (1) searching title, preparing abstract, and legal fees for a title opinion, or (2) title insurance policy where customarily furnished by the seller; costs of preparing conveyances, other instruments, and contracts; related notary lees; costs of making surveys, preparing drawings or plats, recording fees and recording taxes or other charges paid incident to recordation (e.g., mortgage discharge recording fees), etc.	s			275.	o.c	s	
	Miscellaneous Costs: Amounts paid in connection with sale of former residence and purchase of a new residence. (Normally, these expenses (except a.) are paid by the purchaser; however, depending on local custom and practice, the seller may be required to pay some of them. If claimed by seller, it must be established that payment was because of an established custom, that payment by purchaser would be unusual and that payment by seller was required by custom rather than a practice to enhance the sale.)				- ,			
	a. Prepayment Charge: The amount paid as required in the montgage or other security instru- ment as a charge for prepayment; or if not specifically required by the montgage instrument, the amount paid limited to 3 months prevailing interest on the loan balance	s						
	Lender's Appraisal Fee: The amount paid for the mortgagee-lender's charge for residence appraisal	\$					s	
	c. FHA or VA Application Fee; The amount paid.	\$					\$	-
	d. Certifications: The amount paid for any required certifications as to structural soundness or physical condition of property, when required by mortgagee-lender, FHA or VA	s			3	0,00	s	
	Credit Report: The amount paid for credit or factual data report on the buyer, if required by montgagee-lender, FHA or VA	s					s	
	f. Mortgage Title Policy: The amount paid for mortgage (or lenders) title insurance policy only (as distinguished from a mortgage insurance policy on the life of the borrower and the additional cost for an owner's title policy)			:			s	
	g. Eacrow Agent's Fee: The amount paid to an escrow agent, title company, or similar entity for closing a real estate transaction	s					s	
1	h. State Revenue Stamps: The amount paid	\$					\$	
i	Sales or Transfer Taxes: Mortgagee Tax, if Any: The amount paid	\$					\$	
	Loan Origination Fee: Amount charged to cover the administrative overhead cost of processing the loan. (Subject to limitations contained in Handbook F-12, Relocation Policy – 620.42 m.)	(A)	œ.j	( 6- b 10-8			s	
1	Other Incidental Expenses: Such other reasonable and customary charges or fees paid as may be authorized and not properly includable in items issed above (itemize and explain; if necessary, attach separate sheet):							
1	Unexpired Lease Termination Expense	\$						
_	Total - Former Residence	\$	5,	6	87.0	0 3-4	1,444	ergenergen gez
_	Total - New Residence	1	Cert			) (j)-(,	s	

## FOOTNOTES:

PS Form 4877, October 1990 (Reverse)

Exhibit 631.1 (page 2), Form 4877, Reimbursement of Real Estate Expenses-Change of Official Station



# Reimbursement of Real Estate Expenses – Change of Official Station

	(See Handbo	INSTRU ok F-12. Relocation Poli		ES Relocation Policy)	
Complete Parts I, II, and II totals on reverse.     Attach one complete set of a. Copy of sales agreeme b. Copy of settlement she c. Copy of receipt for any (credit report, appraised. Copy of disclosure state. Truth in Lending Active Truth in Lending Active State.	documents required to a nt between buyer and se et. item claimed that is not ,etc.) tement that is required it (purchase transactions	support claim. iller. t on settlement sheet by Regulation Z and only).	4. Submit th National / Field Divi & System tor in Ch- signed by PDC for g		ion to the General Manager, controller (Headquarters); or gional Manager, Accounting al Chief Inspector or Inspec- priate. When Form 4877 is
Name (First, M.I., Last)	and the second second	I. EMPLOYEE	- CLAIMANT	<del>/</del>	
John A. Doe				Check Applicable Box if Earlier Claim Estate Expenses Submitted for this Tr	for Reed Yes 🔯 No
Official Duty Station accress	om 8800' 1175 1	'Fafart Plaza	503: 1300	1. 1 — 4	0-5211
		R. TRANS		maten, u.c. Zezi	
Old Official Station		1	ecurity No.	i i	Fravel Order Number
Kansas City, MO	64108-9521		<u>87-65-4</u>		148-0-001
		Old Official Station	PROPERTY DA	New Official	Stothers
Complete Address of Residence (Include Apt/Suite No. & ZIP-4)				15802 Belair Di Bowje, MD 207	rive
No. of Dwelling Units on Property				1	
Sale and/or Purchase Price				# 97,250.00	
Date of Closing or Settlement				12/13/90	
Amt. of Expense Being Claimed				# 3.187.25	
Adjustments to Amount Claimed					
Amount applied to outstanding advance					
Net to Transferee				# 3,187.25	
		Employee	Certification		
was in my name and/or a men				only amounts actually paid by me finitely informed of my transfer, or it	s my new residence.
Signature of Employee	a. Dre				Date /2/17/90
			~		
A. Sales Expenses—The expenses—The expenses approved as being (1) reason seller in the locality where the As Claimed As Incre	able in amount and (2) property is located.		are hereby a paid by a buy	Expenses—The expenses of the pproved as being (1) reasonable is yer in the locality where the property and As Increased As Re	amount and (2) customarily is located.
Title of Approving Official (at forme	r duty station)	Cesse		o Ottom (m now only similar) Languer, Nat'l Account	Dette
Signature of Approving Official (at	brmer duty socion)			proving Official (at new duty station)	12/24/90
Funding Finance Number Approvin	g Official's Monenure and Di	49	, 400-7/	C. Append	
Strange a. of	mith 12/24	/90			
Fraudulent Claim-& abification of an item: 267; id. 1001).	v fiv exbeute accordiz acq2 9 po	rhabura of the chaics (28 USC 2514	) and may mout in a	line of not more than \$10,000 or improvement to	r not more than 5 years or both (18 USC
to a congressional office at your request; is ter enforcement agency for investigative or information selevent to a hiring, contracting Employment Opportunity Commission for a	o CAIS for review of private valid r prosecutorial purposes; to a gove, or ficerating decision by the USP necessions a formal EEO comple	legislation; to a labor organization emission agency where relevant le 'S; to an expert or consultant und sire filed against USPS under 29 f	n as required by NLR o a hiving, contracting, or contract with the U CFR 1613; to an inde	day travel and relocation expenses. As a noun- A: where pertinent in a legal proceeding to which or learning decision by the expusering agency. SPS to fulfill an apprety function; to the federal pendant Certified Public Accountant during an of completion of this form is voluntary, however, if it	h the USPS is a party; to an appropriate in to a government agency in order to alich Records Center for storage; to the Equal Scial auch of USPS finances; and to the

Exhibit 631.1 (page 3), Form 4877, Reimbursement of Real Estate Expenses-Change of Official Station

PS Form 4877, October 1990

Relocation Policy Exhibit 631.1 (page 4)

ite	m Explanation	Former Residence	,	lew F	le aldence
1.	Brokerage Fees: The sales commission paid to a broker or real estate agent for selling former residence. Also, fees for kisting a residence and payment for multiple listing service, if not included in commission paid to the broker or agent	s			
2	Advertising: Expenses paid for newspaper and other advertising when a direct sale is made without the services of a real estate broker or real estate agent.	\$			
3	Appraisal Fee: The amount paid to a professional appraiser for establishing a suggested sale price for the residence	\$			•
4.	Legal and Related Costs: The amounts paid for costs of (1) searching title, preparing abstract, and legal fees for a title opinion, or (2) title insurance policy where customanly furnished by the selver costs of preparing conveyances, other instruments, and contracts; related notary fees; costs of manny surveys, preparing drawings or plast, recording fees and recording taxes or other charges paid incident to recordation (e.g., mortgage discharge recording fees), etc.	<b>s</b> .	s		385.00
	Miscellaneous Costs: Amounts paid in connection with sale of former residence and purchase of a new residence. (Normally, these expenses (except a.) are paid by the purchaser; hower, depending on local custom and practice, the seller may be required to pay some of them. If carmed by saler, it must be established that payment was because of an established custom, that payment by purchaser would be unusual and that payment by seller was required by custom rather than a practice to enhance the sale.)				77 ·
	a. Prepayment Charge: The amount paid as required in the mortgage or other security instru- ment as a charge for prepayment or if not specifically required by the mortgage instrument, the amount paid limited to 3 months prevailing interest on the loan balance	s			
	b Lander's Appraisal Fee: The amount paid for the montgagee-lender's charge for residence appraise	s	\$		125.00
	c FNA or VA Application Fee: The amount paid	\$	5		**************************************
	d Certifications: The amount paid for any required certifications as to structural soundness or physical condition of property, when required by mortgagee-lender, FHA or VA	s	\$		
-	Credit Report: The amount paid for credit or factual data report on the buyer, if required by mortgages-lander. FHA or VA	s	s		25.00
	f Mortgage Title Policy: The amount paid for mortgage (or lender's) title insurance policy only (as essinguated from a mortgage insurance policy on the life of the borrower and the additione cost for an owner's title policy)		\$		221.00
1	g Excrew Agent's Fee: The amount paid to an escrow agent, title company, or similar entity for closing a real estate transaction	s	\$		
-	h. State Revenue Stamps: The amount paid	\$	\$		
-	Selse or Transfer Taxes: Mortgages Tax, If Any: The amount paid	s	\$	- 1	458.75
	Loan Origins tion Fee: Amount charged to cover the administrative overhead cost of processing the total (Subject to Imitations contained in Handbook F-12, Relocation Policy - 620.42 m.)	25 A 1 5 W	s		972.50
1	Other Increantal Expenses: Such other reasonable and customary charges or fees paid as may be authorized and not properly includable in items listed above (itemize and explain; if necessary, stands separate sheet):				
3. (	Unexpired Lease Termination Expense	s			
	Total - Former Residence	\$ 1-4	4		y ity jedig
_	Total - New Residence		5	2	187.252

NOTE: in accordance went the real estate expense provisions of Handbook F-12. Relocation Policy, costs of insurance against damage or loss of property, maintenance and operating costs and property asses are not reimbursable. Also, morpage discourts, points, interest on loans, and losses in connection with the sale or purchase of a residence due to price or maner conditions we no reimbursable. Notwithstanding the above, no lee, cost, charge, or expense is reimbursable which is determined to be a part of the finance charge under the Trum in Lanning Act. Tels 6-Dublic Law 9-Du21, and Regulation Z issued pursuant threshe by the Board Olivertons of the Federal Reserve System. Expenses incurred by the gentlement is authorized are not reimbursable.

#### FOOTNOTES:

PS Form 4877, October 1990 (Reverse)

Exhibit 631.1 (page 4), Form 4877, Reimbursement of Real Estate Expenses-Change of Official Station

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>The appropria amount of expenses which may be reimbursed is this amount, but it may not exceed 10% of the actual sale price.

ount, but it may 3t property is multiple family unit type (excluding condominium) expenses will be prerated and showed for residence unit only.

<sup>&</sup>quot;The apprepair amount of expenses which may be reimbursed is this amount, but it may not exceed 5% of the ourchase price.

ay "Reimbursement is ted to the allowable expenses associated with the residence save ture and maximum lot size of 5 acres.

# Chapter 7 Relocation as Part of the Management Associate Program

# 710 Explanation

The Management Associate (MA) program, administered by the division, is a management development program which requires participants to move about a great deal. Management Associates are non bargaining unit employees assigned to field installations. They can be reassigned to new sites throughout the Service as often as every 4 months during their 32 months in the program.

# 720 What the Postal Service will Pay

# 721 Reassignment expenses

Each time a Management Associate is reassigned, the Postal Service will pay for moving household goods, for advance round trips (to locate housing), for temporary quarters, for miscellaneous expenses, and for en route costs, as specified in this handbook. The Postal Service will do this from the time you are first placed into the MA Program through your first assignment after leaving the program. Instead of being paid for the moving of household goods and temporary quarters, you may choose to move a mobile home and be reimbursed in accordance with part 440 each time you are reassigned.

#### 722 Real estate transactions and limitations

In real estate transactions for Management Associates, you may claim costs for only one purchase and sale of a home. The real estate transaction may cover either or both of the following:

- a. The sale of your residence at the official duty station when you were assigned to the MA program.
- b. The purchase of a residence at the first permanent official duty station after you leave the program. You may not claim costs for selling or buying a residence at an interim site.

Note: You should file the real estate claim as soon as you have completed the sale or purchase.

#### 723 Unexpired leases

The Postal Service will allow settlement expenses for unexpired leases at the official duty station at which you were employed when you were assigned to the MA Program and at the interim sites, if the stipulations in this handbook are met. (See section 627.1.)

# 730 Assignment to a Previous Site

Management Associates are sometimes assigned at the end of the program to a site from which they have previously moved (and received relocation benefits). In such cases, the Postal Service will consider the assignment to be an official change of station. The Postal Service will pay all normal relocation costs (consistent with the provision of parts 310 and 510) for temporary quarters, storing household goods, and advance round trip or en route expenses.

740 Relocation Policy

# 740 Time Limits for Settling Real Estate Transactions

# 741 General rule

You must settle real estate transactions (selling and/or buying a home or terminating a lease) for which you request reimbursement within 1 year after the date on which you report for duty at your first duty station after you complete the MA program. This time limit may be extended by the appropriate approving official for up to 2 additional years (see section 612.d). The transaction must be reasonably related to the transfer of official station.

#### 742 Unusual circumstances

If you encounter unique and unusual circumstances, you may submit a written request to your installation department head for a second extension of up to 1 year. You must submit requests of this nature well before the first extension period expires to the respective officer for approval/denial. For other exceptions, follow the deviation procedures described in part 180.

When you apply for an extension, you must specify the efforts you have taken to market the property. You must provide documentation showing that you have made a continuous and reasonable effort to sell the property.

# 750 Travel Vouchers for the MA Program

You must prepare travel vouchers for all relocation costs, as specified in this handbook.

# Chapter 8 Grossing Up AllowanceNon Bargaining Employees

# 810 Employee Responsibilities

You will receive a Form W-2 and facsimile of IRS Form 4782 (see Exhibit 810) from the San Mateo PDC shortly after the end of the calendar year in which you relocated. Form 4782 shows all payments made in that year and supports the amounts reported on your relocation Form W-2. Postal Service payment cycles and the RMFs transportation of household goods billing periods may overlap calendar years. Therefore, it is important to keep accurate records of the following items to ensure that expenses are reported in the appropriate time frame for tax purposes:

- a. Vouchers;
- b. Payments received;
- c. Bills of lading; and
- d. Real estate transaction files or papers.

# 820 "Grossing Up" Allowance

#### 821 Definition

A "grossing up" allowance is your reimbursement from the Postal Service for Federal and, where applicable, State and local income taxes you must pay on nondeductible moving expenses. Grossing up requires two calculations: a calculation of a withholding tax allowance (WTA) and a relocation income tax (RIT). Provided below are the basic descriptions of terms associated with your grossing up calculations:

- a. Earned income. Earned income includes gross income, as per your USPS salary Form W-2. If you are newly hired by the Postal Service, your earned income will be based on your salary, as reflected on your Form 50, plus your nondeductible moving expenses, i.e., the difference between the amount reported on your relocation W-2 (and Form 4782) less the amount you report to IRS as "deductible expenses" on your IRS Form 3903, Moving Expense. In addition, earned income includes your spouse's income as reported on his/her Form W-2.
- b. Withholding tax allowance (WTA). The payment the Postal Service makes to the IRS as an estimate of the Federal withholding tax you will owe on a moving expense reimbursement. On receipt of your relocation vouchers for a taxable relocation reimbursement, the San Mateo PDC calculates your WTA, calculates and pays the IRS Federal income taxes at a rate of 20 percent, and reimburses you for the full amount of your claim (FICA (Medicare) is not withheld).
- c. Year 1. The calendar year during which you are reimbursed for moving expenses. If your payments extend beyond a year, you will have more than one year 1.
- d. Year 2. The calendar year during which you file a tax return covering moving expenses from year 1. If your reimbursements extend beyond a year, you will have more than one year 2.
- e. RIT. The calculation of Federal, State, or local income taxes that you incur on nondeductible moving expenses. Your WTA is subtracted from your RIT to determine your grossing up allowance.
- f. Combined marginal tax rate (CMTR). The tax rate that represents Federal, State, and local income taxes on your earned income.

822 Relocation Policy

g. Deductible moving expense. The total amount of moving expenses you may deduct from your taxes.

h. Nondeductible moving expense. The total amount of moving expenses you may not deduct from your taxes.

# 822 Resignation and retirement

If you leave the Postal Service within 12 months of the time you relocate to a new duty station, you will not receive a grossing up allowance.

# 823 Completing Form 4879, Certification Statement

You must complete and submit to the San Mateo PDC a Form 4879, Certification Statement-Claim for Relocation Income Tax Allowance.

54

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE	EMPLOYEE MOVING EXPENSE INFORMATION	(KEEP FOR YOUR
FACSIMILE OF		RECORDS)
IRS FORM 4782	PAYMENTS HADE DURING CALENDAR YEAR 1990	•

JOHN A DOE SSN 987654321

15302 Belair Drive Bowie, MD 20715-1247

# MOVING EXPENSE PAYMENTS

TYPE OF EXPENSE	AMOUNT PAID TO EMPLOYEE		RTY
TRANSPORTATION OF HOUSEHOLD GOODS AND STORAGE EXPENSES	0	4,320.00	4,320.00
TRAVEL MEALS LODGING ENROUTE TO NEW RESIDENCE	843.10	0	843.10
ADVANCE ROUND TRIP TRAVEL MEALS LODGING IN SEARCH OF NEW RESIDENCE	1,028.50	0	1,028.50
TEMPORARY QUARTERS	4,042.38	0	4,042.38
SALE PURCHASE OR LEASE OF RESIDENCE EXPENSE	8,874.25	0	8,874.25
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES	1,000.00	0	1,000.00
WITHHOLDING TAX ALLOWANCE (WTA)	2,556.69	o	2,556.69
RELOCATION INCOME TAX (RIT)	0	0	0
TOTAL MOVING EXPENSE PAYMENT	18,344.92	4,320.00	22,664.92

THIS FORM IS FURNISHED TO YOU BY THE POSTAL SERVICE TO PROVIDE YOU WITH THE INFORMATION YOU NEED TO COMPUTE YOUR MOVING EXPENSE DEDUCTION. THIS FORM SHOWS THE AMOUNT OF ANY REIMBURSEMENT MADE TO YOU OR PAYMENTS MADE TO A THIRD PARTY FOR YOUR BENEFIT. TO CLAIM THE MOVING EXPENSE DEDUCTION, AND FOR DETAILED MOVING EXPENSE INFORMATION REGARDING THE DEDUCTION, OBTAIN IRS FORM 3903 AND PUBLICATION 521. ALSO SEE IRS CODE SECTIONS 82 AND 217.

Exhibit 810, Form 4782, (IRS Facsimile Form) Employee Moving Expense Information

57

# Chapter 9 Completing Travel/Relocation Vouchers

# 910 What To Remember about Completing Travel/Relocation Vouchers

You must print in ink or type the vouchers that you submit. Submit the original voucher and supporting documents for review and approval. You should keep a copy of the voucher and supporting documents for your files.

# 920 Common Errors

# 921 What to check before submitting your travel/relocation voucher

Before submitting the voucher, make sure that:

- a. Your social security number is correct.
- b. You have attached your receipts. Attach copies of receipts related to relocation, such as documents pertaining to the sale/purchase of your residence and miscellaneous expense claims.
- c. You have included the correct finance number, account numbers, and subaccount numbers.
- d. You have shown the tip separately for each taxi or limousine fare.
- e. You (the traveler) have signed the form.

#### 922 How to deal with erasures and alterations

The traveler or the appropriate approving official must initial any erasures and alterations in totals on the face and body of vouchers.

# 930 Supporting Documentation for Form 1012

#### 931 Miscellaneous expense-bargaining employees

If you claim more than the flat allowance stated in section 292.2, you must support your claim by (a) completing Form 4871; and (b) submitting paid receipts or other acceptable evidence indicating the expenses paid.

#### 932 Receipts

- 932.1 All travel. The receipts should be attached to sheets of bond paper for ease in handling. You must always have the following receipts:
  - a. Passenger ticket coupons for air, rail, or bus.
  - b. Receipts for lodging.
- 932.2 Temporary quarters. You must furnish receipts as stated in part 532.
- 932.3 Transporting a mobile home. You must furnish receipts to support each expense claim for this allowance. (See part 440.)

## 932.4 Miscellaneous Receipts

#### 932.41 You must always have receipts for the following items:

a. Excess baggage. The receipts should indicate the weight of the baggage and points between which the baggage was moved.

- b. Shipments, foreign or express, regardless of amount.
- c. Clerical assistance.
- d. Stenographic and typing services.
- e. Hiring a special vehicle.
- f. Renting typewriters.
- g. Personal services, such as guides, interpreters, and drivers of vehicles.
- h. Telegrams, cablegrams, and radiograms.
- i. Copies of records furnished by Federal or State officials (clerks of courts, etc.).

932.42 Attaching receipts. You must attach receipts for allowable cash expenditures (plus any applicable tax) which are more than \$15. This includes expenses for the following:

- a. Fees relating to travel outside CONUS. (See Handbook F-10, Travel, part 640.)
- b. Taxi fare.
- c. Lodging. Lodging receipts must be from a hotel, motel, apartment, or boarding house.
- d. When you are on actual expenses for subsistence, you must obtain receipts for each item.

# 940 Submitting Travel/Relocation Vouchers

# 941 Submitting vouchers for change of station and travel to a new duty station

Relocation expenses may be claimed together. All subsequent vouchers which refer to the same type of expense must reference the original voucher submitted, i.e., if you amend your claim for temporary quarters expenses, refer to the first voucher you submitted.

#### 942 Submitting vouchers for the sale or purchase of a residence

Each item of expense you claim must be supported by documents showing the expense was in fact incurred. An example of these documents would be a copy of (a) a purchase agreement; (b) a sales agreement; (c) property settlement documents; (d) loan closing statements; (e) invoices or receipts for bills paid; (f) disclosure statements (required by Regulation Z and the Truth in Lending Act), as specified in part 613.

#### 943 Where to submit travel vouchers

Submit voucher(s) to the appropriate approving official for review and approval. The official will submit the voucher(s) to the San Mateo PDC.

# 944 Submitting vouchers for transfers and change of station

If you transfer from another Government agency to the Headquarters of the Postal Service, or between Postal Service installations, you must charge these expenses to the appropriate account for relocation travel and to the department or office that is acquiring you. These vouchers will be processed and paid by the San Mateo PDC. Submit the vouchers as follows:

- a. Relocation Vouchers. Submit to San Mateo PDC, 2700 Campus Drive, San Mateo, CA 94497-9154.
- b. Travel Advances. Submit to San Mateo PDC, 2700 Campus Drive, San Mateo, CA 94497-9154.

Relocation Policy 950

# 950 Reviewing, Approving, and Certifying Vouchers

The appropriate approving official will review vouchers for travel and relocation expenses. The signature of the approving official on the front of the voucher will show that he or she approves your relocation expenses as the most advantageous to the Postal Service. Your voucher will be submitted to the San Mateo PDC, which will audit and process vouchers for payment. If items on a voucher are not supported by the required documentation, the San Mateo PDC will not pay these expenses.

# Appendix A Approving Officials

# I. U.S. Postal Service Officers

- A. The Postmaster General
- B. The Deputy Postmaster General
- C. The Associate Postmaster General
- D. The Senior Assistant Postmasters General
- E. The Assistant Postmasters General
- F. The General Counsel G. The Deputy General Counsel
- H. The Consumer Advocate
- I. The Chief Postal Inspector
- J. The Judicial Officer
- K. The Executive Assistant to the Postmaster General
- L. The Treasurer
- M. The Regional Postmasters General

# II. Delegated Authority to Approve Travel Vouchers, Travel Advance Requests, and Travel Tickets Purchased via GTS System

The Postmaster General delegates to all PCES executives authority to approve travel vouchers, travel advance requests, and travel tickets purchased via GTS System. A PCES executive is authorized to delegate authority only to someone acting in the executive's place when the executive is absent or to someone acting in a vacant executive position. Further redelegation is not allowed except for the following:

- A. The appropriate Assistant Postmaster General may delegate approval authority to the Manager in charge of the following postal installations:
  - 1. Transportation Management Services Centers
  - 2. Procurement and Materiel Management Service Offices
  - 3. Managers, three Field Centers, Management Academy
  - 4. National Test Administration Center, Alexandria, VA
  - 5. National Address Information Center, Memphis, TN
- B. The Chief Postal Inspector may delegate the authority to purchase travel tickets to Postal Inspectors on official audit and criminal investigations.
- C. All Inspectors in Charge and all Assistant Inspectors in Charge are granted the authority to approve travel vouchers.
- D. Regional Postmasters General may delegate authority to managers reporting directly to Regional Directors.

Copies of any delegations of authority must be sent to the General Manager, Accounts Payable Division, San Mateo PDC, San Mateo, CA 94497-9400.

#### III. Restriction

Approving officials may not approve their own travel vouchers. The next senior official with approving authority must approve their vouchers.

# Appendix B Reimbursement Rates

The terms and reimbursement rates stated in this section apply throughout this entire handbook.

# I. Mileage Rates

# A. Standard mileage rates

Vehicle	Cents per mile .
Privately owned vehicle     Privately owned motorcycle     Privately owned airplane	24.0 20.0 45.0

# B. Relocation-related advance round trip and/or en route to new duty station

The allowable rate is 24 cents per mile.

Odometer readings are not required on the respective claim forms; the integrity of the claim is the responsibility of the traveler. However, should the approving official have reason to question the claim, the claimant must provide evidence that supports the claim of distance traveled.

#### II. Per Diem Rates

#### A. What per diem includes

The per diem allowance includes all charges for meals, all fees and tips to waiters, bellboys, and porters, laundry and cleaning expenses, etc.

# B. If lodging is required

When the traveler is in a travel status and lodging is required, per diem will be allowed at a rate of \$8.50 per 6-hour segment or fraction thereof for travel to locations identified as high cost localities. Travel to all other localities will be paid at a rate of \$6.50 per 6-hour segment or fraction thereof. For segments where travel occurs within both high and average cost localities, the traveler determines the per diem rate for the segment based upon where the majority of time was spent during that segment. Receipts supporting any lodging claim must accompany the related travel voucher(s) and must be from a hotel, motel, apartment, or boarding house. (See part 930.)

# C. High cost localities

The following key cities and areas are classified as high cost localities (all other cities are classified as average cost localities).

ties, Edwards t Station, China
: Counties of
nd Counties of
•
·
. 1 C. D
and St. Bernard

ate/City Locality 1	County and/or other defined location <sup>2,3</sup>
Massachusetts	
Andover	Essex
Boston	Suffolk
Lowell	Middlesex
Martha's Vineyard/Nantucket .	Dukes and Nantucket
Quincy	Norfolk
Michigan Detroit	Wayne
Denoite	wayne
Nevada Las Vegas	Clark County, Nellis AFB
New Jersey	
Atlantic City	Atlantic
Eatontown	Monmouth County, Fort Monmouth
Edison	Middlesex
Newark	Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Passaic, and Union
Ocean City/Cape May	Cape May
Princeton/Trenton	Mercer
New Mexico	
Cloudroft	Otero
Santa Fe	Santa Fe
New York	
Monticello	Sullivan
New York City	The boroughs of Bronx, Brooklyn, Manhattan, Queens, and
6	Staten Island; counties of Nassau and Suffolk
Saratoga Springs	Saratoga Westchester
Ohio	
Cleveland	Cuyahoga
Pennsylvania	
Radnor/Chester	Delaware
King of Prussia/Ft. Washington	Ft. Washington, Montgomery Co., except Bala Cynwyd in
Philadephia	Montgomery Co.  Philadelphia County, City of Bala Cynwyd in Montgomery
	County
Valley Forge	Chester
Rhode Island	
Newport	Newport
South Carolina	
Hilton Head	Beaufort
Texas	D. II
Dallas Fort Worth	Dallas and Tarrant
Houston	Harris County, L.B. Johnson Space Center, and Ellington AFE
Virginia Williamsburg	
Washington	77
Seattle	King

#### Notes:

<sup>1</sup> A city locality is defined as all locations within, or entirely surrounded by the corporate limits of the key city, including

Appendix B Relocation Policy

independent entities located within those boundaries.

A county is defined as all locations within, or entirely surrounded by the corporate limits of the key city as well as the boundaries of the listed counties, including independent entities located within the boundaries of the city and the listed counties.

Military installations or Government-related facilities (whether or not specifically named) that are located partially within the city or county boundary shall include all locations that are geographically part of the military installations or Government-related facility, even though part(s) of such activities may be located outside the defined per diem locality.

Relocation Policy Appendix B

#### III. Lodging Rates

#### A. General policies regarding lodging

For travel in the contiguous United States, the Postal Service will allow actual expenses for lodging when employees are placed in a travel status for relocation.

- 1. Employees should not seek exemptions from sales taxes on lodging by using exemption certificates, since the employee, and not the Postal Service, is responsible for paying for the costs incurred. Employees will be reimbursed for taxes they pay.
- 2. Lodging arrangements must be carefully controlled. A diligent effort must be made to obtain lodging at a reasonable cost in all areas. However, if reasonable attempts are made to obtain less costly lodging, but the attempts are unsuccessful, the Postal Service will pay for actual expenses incurred.
- 3. The policy for actual lodging expenses is not approval to randomly select lodging facilities without regard to cost. Control over lodging expenses is an integral part of the approving official's management duties. The Postal Service will not tolerate an employee's capricious or nondiscretionary use of lodging facilities that charge exorbitant fees. In these situations, the approving official will disallow the amounts claimed in excess of the reasonable cost for the location.
- 4. Approving officials should be careful about what they approve and must be familiar with the traveler's efforts to secure less costly housing. Distances from lodging facilities to the work assignment and related transportation costs must be analyzed by the approving official when considering rates.

#### B. If lodging is denied

If a traveler is denied lodging when confirmed reservations were made, he or she should demand a penalty payment or complimentary lodging elsewhere. Any payments the traveler receives should be made payable to the Disbursing Officer, USPS, and forwarded to the San Mateo PDC with the travel voucher. If complimentary or partial complimentary lodgings are provided, the traveler should claim reimbursement only for any actual charges.

# Appendix C Expense Accounts Used in Connection with Relocation/Travel

51239	Personnel Benefits - Miscellaneous Expense Allowance
51241	Personnel Benefits - Advance Round Trip
51242	Personnel Benefits - En Route Travel
51243	Personnel Benefits - Temporary Quarters
51244	Personnel Benefits - Transportation of Household Effects
51247	Grossing Up/RIT
51248	Personnel Benefits - Residence Purchase and/or Sale/Lease

Handbook F-12, June 1991 69

# Appendix D Instructions for Completion of Forms

This appendix contains the instructions for completion of the following travel and relocation forms.

Form 1012	Travel Voucher
Form 4872	Claim for Subsistence Expenses - Temporary Quarters
Form 178	Specific Travel Order - Relocation & Relocation Agreemen
Form 4871	Miscellaneous Expense Allowance Claim
Form 4877	Reimbursement of Real Estate Expenses - Change of
	Official Station
Form 4879	Certification Statement - Claim for Relocation Income Tax Allowance
Form 1011	Travel Advance Request and Itinerary Schedule
Form 8059	Request for Relocation Management Firm (RMF) Service

#### Form 1012, Travel Voucher

This section shows you how to fill out the front of Form 1012. The steps are keyed to the sections in Exhibit 335.4. You should type or print the following information:

- a. Payee's Name: Your full name.
- b. Social Security No.: Your social security number.
- c. Mailing Address: Your correct mailing address. This should be the place where you want to receive your check. It can be your home, office, or other delivery point.
- d. For Travel and other Expenses (From and To): The date you began your travel (From) and the date you ended your travel (To).
- e. Applicable Specific Travel Order Relocation: Used when travel relates to relocation. Obtain this number from Form 178, Specific Travel Order Relocation & Relocation Agreement.
- f. Type of Relocation: The phase(s) of relocation in which you are claiming reimbursement. The phases of relocation to be entered in this block are advance round trip(s), en route, and transportation of mobile homes.
- g. Travel Advance: If you received a travel advance from the San Mateo Postal Data Center or Post Office Accounting Division, enter: (1) the outstanding amount of the advance, (2) the amount you will apply to expenses on this voucher, (3) the remaining balance (if any). Do not include emergency advances from local post office funds.
- h. Transportation: Transportation tickets may be paid any of the following ways:
  - (1) GSA issued credit card (Diners Club Credit Card). Individual credit card issued to designated employees in their name. Charges are billed directly to the employee for payment.
  - (2) Government Transportation System (GTS). A centrally billed Postal Service account for common carrier charges only.
  - (3) Other. Transportation tickets purchased by means other than above. Examples include cash or check.
- i. Amount Claimed: The total amount claimed from the back of the form or from the continuation sheet.
- j. Signature of Payee: Sign the form here. The name here must be the same as the name shown at the top of the voucher in Payee's Name.
- k. Date: The date you submit the voucher for payment.
- l. Title of Payee: Your official job title.
- m. Authorized Approving Official's Signature: The approving official will sign here.
- n. Title: The approving official's title.
- o. Date: The date the approving official signs the voucher.
- p. Finance Number: The finance number of the office charged for the expense.
- q. Future Use: Do not enter data in this column.
- r. Sub-Location: The sub-location code of the office charged for the expense.
- s. Account: (See Appendix C for travel account numbers).
- t. Amount: The amount to be charged to the finance number. The amount(s) entered must equal the amount claimed.

Relocation Policy Appendix D

Note: If you are traveling to the Management Academy, Potomac, MD, or the Technical Center, Norman, OK, you must have the registrar certify the type of accommodations you used. Inspection Service will follow instructions issued by the Chief Postal Inspector.

Travel Voucher

PENSON STATES							
Payee's Name (First, M.L. La					Social Security Number		
(a)	)				<u>(b)</u>		
Maiing Address							
For Travel and	Other Expenses		Applicable Specific Tr	avel Order Relocation	Type of Relo	cation	
From (Dase)	To (Date)					***************************************	
(d)	(d) (d)				(t)		
	I		Travel	Advance			
Outstanding \$ (9)			Amount to be applied \$	3)	Balance to remain outstanding 1	·(9)	
Transportation (Air or Ra  Personal Credit Card  GTS (Credit Card - G  Other, Specify:  FRAUDLENT CUAN-Fasscoon U.S.C. 2519 and may result in a year, or both (18 U.S.C. 267) id 11 Septature of Payee	iovernment Trans	sportation Syst	novice a fortesture of the claum (28)	AMOUNT CLAIMEE	<b>)</b>	Dollars (L)	Coms
(i)				Differences:			İ
Date (K)		·	* Certified correct. Payment or Credit has not been received.				
Tise of Payee (i)				Total verified correct for cha	rge to expense		
Authorized Approving Official (M)	's Signature			Applied to purstanding treve	l advance		
Table (N)			(O)	NET TO TRAVELE	R •		
Finance Numb	~	Future Use	Sub-Location	Account	Amoun		
(P)		(9)	( <del>r</del> )	(5)	( <del>t</del> )		
	····					······································	
						<u> </u>	

The collection of this information is authorized by 39 U.S.C. 1001 and 2008. This information will be used to account for your official duty towal and selection expenses. As a number use, this information may be disclosed to a compressional office at your request; to CMS for review of private relief disposition, to a labor organization as required by M.R.K. where persistent in a legal proceeding to which the USPS is a Party, to an appear or an expense of the relief disposition of the selection 
Appendix D, Form 1012 (Front), Travel Voucher

#### Form 1012, Travel Voucher

This section shows you how to fill out the back of Form 1012. (See Exhibit 335.4.)

- a. Date 19: The calendar year the expense occurred.
- b. Rate: The mileage rate applicable for use of a privately owned vehicle (POV) while on official travel.
- c. Date: The month and date expenses were incurred.
- d. Itinerary/Explanation of Expenses Claimed: Write all the details of each item for expenses claimed. These include:
  - (1) The mode of transportation you used (for example, air, train, POV).
  - (2) Charges for taxi or limousine services between your home or place of business and your duty station. Also show charges from your hotel or place of business to your duty station. Show tips separately.
  - (3) Any deviations from normally traveled routes.
  - (4) Explain delays in trips for reasons beyond your control or personal convenience.
  - (5) If a POV was used, you must indicate the points visited.
  - (6) Tolls charges for turnpikes, tunnels, ferries, bridges, and parking fees.
  - (7) Charges for local transportation expenses required to perform official duties outside your official station.
  - (8) Dates and points of travel, and kind of conveyance when you have used a special conveyance.
  - (9) Expenses you incurred for the official use of telephone or telegraph services or expenses for any unusual charges such as renting a room for a conference, renting equipment, etc.
  - (10) Any cost comparisons.
- e. No. of Miles: The number of official business miles driven using a POV.
- f. Amount: The amount of reimbursement allowed for official business miles driven (number of business miles multiplied by the mileage rate).
- g. No. of Per Diem periods High: The high cost per diem periods applicable for each day of your travel.
- h. No. of Per Diem periods Average: The average cost diem periods applicable for each day of your travel.
- i. Amount: The dollar amount of high cost per diem claimed.
- j. Amount: The dollar amount of average cost per diem claimed.
- k. Less meals Furnished Amount: Reduce the per diem amount claimed by the high cost fixed rates located in Appendix B, II. B. for meals provided at no charge to you by government agencies, private companies, etc. in connection with official travel.
- l. Less meals Furnished Amount: Reduce the per diem amount claimed by the average cost fixed rates located in Appendix B, II. B. for meals provided at no charge to you by government agencies, private companies, etc. in connection with official travel.
- m. Lodging No. of Days: The number of days in lodging while on official travel. The number of days must correspond to the cost indicated in item (n).
- n. Lodging Amount: The cost of lodging while on official travel. The costs may be divided over the number of days you are on travel or the total cost may be indicated in the column representing the day you paid the expense.

o. Car Rental No. of Days: The number of days in for car rental while on official travel. The number of days must correspond to the cost indicated in item (p).

- p. Car Rental Amount: The cost of car rental while on official travel. The costs may be divided over the number of days you are on travel or the total cost may be indicated in the column representing the day you paid the expense.
- q. Transp. Air, Bus, Train fare Amount: The fare associated with transportation to and from origin and destination points of the official travel.
- r. Other Amount: Document and claim allowable expenses incurred related to official travel for all other items in which a column is not provided.
- s. Grand Total Amount to Face of Voucher: The sum of Mileage Amount, Per diem Amount(s), Less Meals Furnished Amount(s), Lodging Amount, Car Rental Amount, Transportation Amount, and Other Amount.
- t. Subtotals Incl. Counts: The total is to be entered for each column.

1		Nature of Expense															
		Mi	leage	e		Per D	ler	n	1	Lo	dging	Car	Renta	ı	Transp	Ot	her
Date 19(4)	tinerary/Explanation of Expenses Claimed	No. of Miles	Rat (b) Amou	٤	No. of Periods High Avg.	Amour	n.	Less Meals Furnish Amour	nt De	No. of Days	Amount	No. of Days	Amoun		Air, Bus, Train Fare Amount	A	noun
(C)	(ત)	<b>(e)</b>	(t)		(F)	(i)		(R)	$\vdash$	(m)	(n)	0	(P)	١	(2)	١,	-\
		167	(47		(7)	G/				(4.1)		18	•			$\uparrow$	+
		↓								_		1		_		4-	<del>-</del>
									H								1
$\dashv$																	
		+-	-								$\vdash$	+	<u>-</u>			T	ᅥ
$\Box$		↓_	_								<b> </b>	4-		_		+	_
$\dashv$		1					-	<del>                                     </del>	<u> </u>								!
		T	Γ									1				T	
		$\vdash$	-	-	<b></b>	<del>                                     </del>	-		-	-	┝	+-	-	-	<del>                                     </del>	+	
		_	_	<u>i</u> _								<u> </u>		<u> </u>		4	
					<del> </del>		<u> </u>	<del> </del>	-	1		1					
二	*****								上			1	1	Г		$\top$	
		╂—	-	<del> </del>			<u> </u>	├	<del> </del>	-	<del>                                     </del>	+-	├	<del>!</del>		+-	
				_			亡		İ	<u> </u>			<u> </u>	L		丄	
							-	ـ	-	1			1				
一		T		┪			-		L	<del>                                     </del>	t	1-	<del> </del>	i	<del>                                     </del>	十	
_		1_	<u> </u>	<u> </u>			L		-	}_	1	-	<del> </del>	−	<del>                                     </del>	+	
$\dashv$					<del> </del>	<del> </del>	╁	<del>                                      </del>	÷	1		1		į			
$\Box$		Ī					L		I							T	
$\dashv$		╁	╟	<del> </del>	├──	├─	┼	┼─	<del>!</del>	╂—	$\vdash$	+-	+-	÷	-	+	
		<u> </u>	L	<u>l</u>			t		<u> </u>	1_				<u>!</u>		$\perp$	
_					<u> </u>	<del> </del>	+	┼	+	1			1	!			
	<del></del>	T	1	H			$\pm$		t	1	1 1	$\top$	1	t		十	
-		+	├-	<u> </u>	<b> </b>	<del>                                     </del>	F	-	+	┼	┼		┼	+	<b>├</b> ─	+	
		$\perp$					Ė		İ	1_			<u> </u>	1		$\perp$	
=							Ŧ	-	-	-		T					
$\exists$		$\dagger$	<del>                                     </del>	H			L		İ	士	+	+-	+	÷	1	十	
二		↓_	<u> </u>	1		1	T	-	I	1_		4_	┼	╀	-	+	
$\dashv$				1	<b></b>	├	┼	+	┿	1							
二		T	Π	-			I	Ţ	I	1		$\top$	T	T	T	T	
-+		+-	├-	╌	<del> </del>	├	÷	+	╁	$\vdash$	┼─┼		+-	┿	+	+	
ユ				L		二	t		1	1_	<u> </u>		1	L			
and Total	Ans. Substrats Incl. Courts		l			↓	+		+	4	1 1	-	1	•			

Appendix D, Form 1012 (Back), Travel Voucher

#### Form 4872, Claim for Subsistence Expenses - Temporary Quarters

This section shows you how to fill out the front of Form 4872. The steps are keyed to the sections in Exhibits 533.4 and 534.2. You should type or print the following information:

- a. Printed Name of Employee: Your full name.
- b. Specific Travel Order Number: This number is available from Form 178, Specific Travel Order Relocation & Relocation Agreement.
- c. Social Security No.: Your social security number.
- d. Address of Official Duty Station: The address of your new official duty station.
- e. Period Claimed for Temporary Quarters: Enter your temporary quarters beginning and ending dates.
- f. Date From To: The dates you are claiming temporary quarters expense on the voucher.
- g. No. of Dependents: The number of dependents, excluding your spouse, occupying temporary quarters.
- h. No. of Days: The number of days of temporary quarters claimed on the voucher.
- i. Daily Rate \$: See part 530 to determine the applicable rate.
- j. Total Maximum Expenses Allowed for (First, Second, Third) 10 Days: The maximum reimbursable temporary quarters expense for the applicable 10-day segment claimed. There is a different daily rate for each 10-day segment of temporary quarters.
- k. Total Maximum Expenses for the Three 10-Day Periods: The total expenses claimed for temporary quarters, excluding personal phone calls home, cannot exceed this amount.
- l. Total Maximum Expenses Allowed: The total expenses claimed for temporary quarters, excluding personal phone calls home, cannot exceed this amount.
- m. PCES Enter Actual Expenses: The total expenses claimed for temporary quarters, excluding personal phone calls home.
- n. Claiming Lesser of Actual or Maximum Expenses: The lesser of total actual expenses documented on the back of this form or the computed maximum amount, excluding personal phone calls home.
- o. Personal Calls Home: The total allowable cost of personal phone calls home.
- p. Total Claimed: The sum of temporary quarters claimed and personal calls home.
- q. Applied to Outstanding Advance: The amount of the total claimed to be applied to an outstanding advance.
- r. Signature of Employee: Sign the form here. The name here must be the same as the name shown at the top of the voucher in Printed Name of Employee.
- s. Date: The date you submit your voucher for payment.
- t. Authorized Approving Official's Signature: The approving official will sign here.
- u. Date: The date the approving official signs the voucher.
- v. Title of Payee: Your official job title.
- w. Title: The approving official's title.

- PED 518785

## Claim for Subsistence Expenses – Temporary Quarters

NOT IN SERVER				
rinted Name of Employee (First.	M.L. Lasg			
pecific Travel Order Number	Social Security No		Address of Official Duty Station	
(4)	Successfully Ac	ີ (c)	1	
eriod Claimed for Temporary Ou	aviera Date		(d)	
(e)		f) to		
<u> </u>		<u></u>		
DADCARING	Computation	of the maximum T	Q allowance for the period claimed	
BARGAINING First 10 day				
riist 10 day	Employee;	No	of days (h) x daily rate \$ (i).	•
	Spouse:		of days x daily rate \$	
,		NO.	or cays x casy rate s	
Takel as a fa	Dependents: No. of Geper	ndents (4) x No.	of daysx daily rate \$	- · · · / i)
i otal maxin	num expenses allowed for	First 10 days		\$\$
Second 10	day period:		(1)	
	Employee:		ol days (h) x daily rate \$ (t).	
	Spouse:		of daysx daily rate \$	
•	Dependents: No. of deper	ndents (4) x No.	of daysx daily rate \$	_ • \$
Total maxin	num expenses allowed for	Second 10 days	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	s_ <u>(J)</u>
Third 10 day	y period:			
	Employee:		of days (h) x daily rate \$ (i).	
	Spouse:	No.	of daysx daily rate \$	\$
1	Dependents: No. of deper	ndents (5) x No.	of daysx daily rate \$	- \$
Total maxin	num expenses allowed for	Third 10 days		s <u>(i)</u>
				1.8
Total for th	e three 10 day periods	*********	17 20 21 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	s_ <u>(k)</u>
NON BARGAINING				
	Employee:		of days (h) x daily rate \$ (i)	
	Spouse:	No.	of days x daily rate \$	= \$ ·
	Dependents: No. of depen	ndents (3) x No.	of daysx daily rate \$	\$
Total maxis	mum expenses allowed .	~ **** **** **** **** **** **** ***		<u>s_(1)</u>
PCES				
	actual expenses	7 Proc 2000 2 TT - 6 T 20 T 4 T 4 T 4 T 4 T 4 T 4 T 4 T 4 T 4 T		<u>s(m)</u>
	Chining from			• (n)
			um expenses:	
				4 - 1
			·	
	Differences (S	MPUC US0):	PC 1974 2 200 2 6 77 1 1870 9 7 7 7 1874 14 2 5 7 7 8 7 4 8 7 4 8 7 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	***************************************
	Total verified o	correct (SMPDC use)		***************************************
				(-)
		-		,,
ature of Employee		Dete	Authorized Approving Official's Signature	Date
<u>(r)</u>		(5)	(+)	(u)
of Payers (Y)			Title (ω)	

The collection of this information is authorized by 38 U.S.C. 1001 and 2004. This information will be used to account for your discuss day travel and relocation expenses. As a nutrier less, this information may be disclosed to a compression of flow at 100 and 10

Appendix D, Form 4872 (Front), Claim for Subsistence Expenses-Temporary Quarters

PS Form 4872, October 1990

#### Form 4872, Claim for Subsistence Expenses - Temporary Quarters

This section shows you how to fill out the back of Form 4872. (See Exhibits 533.4 and 534.2.) You should type or print the following information:

- a. Date: The date the expense you are claiming was incurred.
- b. Lodging: The amount paid for your temporary lodging. Spread the amount of your lodging equally by the number of days the costs cover. Example: You pay \$900 for 30 days of lodging. The daily cost is \$30 a day.
- c. Meals: The amount paid for meals for you and other family members in temporary quarters.
- d. Clothing, Laundry & Cleaning: The amount paid for washing and cleaning clothing.
- e. Total: Total of the amounts claimed for meals, lodging, clothing, laundry, and cleaning.
- f. Personal Phone Calls Home: The allowable amount claimed for phone calls home when not accompanied by your immediate family.
- g. Subtotal 1st 10 days 2nd 10 days 3rd 10 days: Used by bargaining unit employees to total each 10-day period.
- h. Subtotal: Used for totaling the applicable column.
- i. Actual Days in Temporary Quarters: Enter the total number of days you have claimed for temporary quarters.
- j. Grand Total: Enter the total of each category of expense claimed.

Day No.	Date	Lodging	Means	Cotting, Laundry & Cleaning	Total	Personal Phone Calls Home	Oay No.	Date	Lodping	Magis	Clothing, Laundry & Cleaning	Total	Personal Phone Call Home
-,	(a)	(b)	(c)	(d)	(e)	( <del>‡</del> )	27					<b> </b>	1
2							39						1
,							20						1
4				1		1	40				1		
5						1	41						
						1	a					1	1
7				1		1	0				1 .		1.
٠						1	4				1		
,				1		1	45				1		1
10						1	4						
antal Says	<b>←</b> (g)		····	1			0			1			
11							4			<b> </b>		T	
12				1			4					1	
13				1		1	50			<b>†</b>		1	1
14	1					1	51						
15				<u> </u>		1	2			<b>†</b>	<b>.</b>		
16						1	s			1	1	1	
17							u					1	
18							55				1	1	1
19	1					1	55			1	1		
-							57		Ì	1		1	$\top$
-	(- (g)						54			1		1	1
21				1			20			1		1	1
2										1			
2							87			<b>†</b>		1	
24											1	1	1
2				1			83			1	1	1	1
3												1	
z							-						
2			***************************************							1		1	
										1			
=												1	1
- K	(e)÷									1	1	1	
21			***************************************			1	70			1			
₽						1	n			<b>T</b>			
<u> =</u>							72			1	1		1
<u>u</u>							73			1	1	1	1
<u>.</u>			, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,				74			1	1		1
<u>,  </u>						1	75			<b>T</b>	<del>                                     </del>	1	1
	Subtotal					1		Subtotal	<b> </b>	<b>T</b>	+	1	1-
٧_	Days in Te						٧.٠	GRAND TOTAL				4	

\*Bargaring Unit Stationum ethy
PS Form 4872, October 1990 (Reverse)

Appendix D, Form 4872 (Back), Claim for Subsistence Expenses-Temporary Quarters

#### Form 178, Specific Travel Order - Relocation & Relocation Agreement

This section shows you how to fill out Form 178. The steps are keyed to the sections in Exhibit 244. You should type or print the following information:

- a. Order Number: Specific Order Number In the first six spaces, enter the gaining office finance number, then the last digit of the year of the employee's official reporting date. In the last three spaces, enter the sequential number related to the number of employees relocated and eligible for relocation benefits by the gaining office.
- b. Employee Name: Enter employee's first name, middle initial, and last name.
- c. Social Security Number: Enter employee's social security number.
- d. Issuing Office: Enter the issuing office's name and location.
- e. Employee Category: Check the employee category at the new duty station.
- f. Signature of Employee: Employee signature indicating they have read and understood the relocation agreement.
- g. Date Completed: Date employee signs relocation agreement section.
- h. Official Duty Station (Name and Address)-New: Enter name and address of the new duty station.
- i. Official Duty Station (Name and Address)-Old: Enter name and address of the old duty station.
- j. Finance Number: Enter the finance number absorbing employee's relocation costs.
- k. Sub Location Code: Enter the sub location code applicable to the employee's new duty station.
- 1. Sub Account Number: Enter the sub account number applicable to the employee's new position.
- m. Reporting Date: Enter date the employee reports for work at the new duty station.
- n. Transfer Authorization: Check appropriate transfer authorization.
- o. Family Members: Document the names of the employee's immediate family (dependents) relocating with the employee, their relationship to the employee, and age.
- p. Posial Service will reimburse allowable expenses associated with the following: The approving official checks the benefits allowed for the transferee.
- q. Signature of Authorized Official: Signature of authorized official.
- r. Title: Enter title of authorized official.
- s. Date: The date the authorized official signs the form. Forward the original of the travel order, signed by the proper official, to the San Mateo Postal Data Center. The green copy should be held by the issuing office. The yellow copy is given to the employee.

Specific T	ravel Order – Re	location				
& Relocati	on Agreement					
Order (a)		Amended Paye	e Name (First, M.I., Last)		SSN (C)	
Issuing Office (Name and location) (d)					ategory: (e) Non bargaining	☐ Bargai
		RELOCATION	N AGREEMENT	<u> </u>		
Present employees of the Postal transportation, moving, storage et in the interest of the Postal Service	openses and other allow					
	assigned duty station a	ind to remain in	12, Relocation Policy and/or F-11 the U.S. Postal Service and at-n erstand the effective date of my tr	ny newly-2:	ssigned duty static	on for a pe
I understand and agree that if it connection with my transfer ships			to me and to third parties by the se the United States Postal Service		tes Postal Service	as benefi
3. I further understand that the praceptable to the U.S. Postal S			greement will not apply if I am set ity station for the benefit of the Pr			
<ol> <li>I have been advised of relocation, (as applicable), relating</li> </ol>		ad the appropri	ate sections of Handbook F-12,	Relocation	Policy and/or F-1	I, PCES R
Signature of Employee (Retired PCES and	d PCES Surviving Spouse de	not sign)		Date Comp	leted	
( <del>t</del> )					(9)	
	OFFICIA	L DUTY STAT	ON (Name and Address)			
New (h)			Old (¿)			
Finance Number Sub Location Code (j) (K)	Sub Account Number	Reporting Date (M)	Postal Service will reimburse a following: (P)	diowable e	xpenses associat	ed with the
Transfer Authorization (n) Change in station	*Retired PCES		Advance Round Trip:  Employee Spouse  Spouse Job Search (PCES		Travel	
New Appointse	"PCES Surviving "Do not sign Relocati	•	En route: Mode of Travel_			
Family Members (O)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		Temporary Quarters: No. of Shipment of household goo	•	<del></del>	
Name	Relation	Age	Residence Transactions	<b>ψ</b>		
	_ Spouse	111111	Second automobile			
			Transfer of mobile home			
			<del> </del>			

The collection of this information is authorized by 30 U.S.C. 1001 and 2004. This information will be used to account by you official duty have part relocation expenses. As a notine use, this information may be decided to a compression office as your requires to CARD for mineral efficiency to a labor organization on sequence by MILAL wave partners in a legal procession by which the USPS is a party, to an appropriate as enforcement agency to investigation or processional purposes; to a government agency where relevant to a hirting, contracting, or ficensing decision by the USPS is an aspect or consultant under contract with the USPS to be fill at a agency function; to the Federal Records Center for scring; to the East Employment Opportunity Commission for investigating a format EEO complain field against USPS under 20 CPR 1613; to an independent Center Opportunity Activities and investigating a format EEO complain field against USPS under 20 CPR 1613; to an independent Center Opportunity Activities and investigating and investigating a formation is not provided, you may not be resolved only your lawning in influence of industrial processing in which is a processing investigating a formation is not provided, you may not be resolved only your lawning influence industrial processing in influence of the formation in a resolved processing in the processing investigation and processing in the processing investigation of the form is resolved.

(9.) Tido (r)

PS Form 178, October 1990

Appendix D, Form 178, Specific Travel Order-Relocation & Relocation Agreement

#### Form 4871, Relocation - Miscellaneous Expense Allowance Claim

This section shows you how to fill out Form 4871. The steps are keyed to the sections in Exhibits 291 and 292.4. You should type or print the following information:

- a. Name of Payee (First, M.I., Last): Your name.
- b. Social Security No.: Your social security number.
- c. Specific Travel Order Number: This number is available from your Form 178, Specific Travel Order Relocation & Relocation Agreement.
- d. Address of Official Duty Station: The address of your new official duty station.
- e. I claim standard allowance of \$\_\_\_\_: The flat allowance claimed. See part 290 for amounts allowed.
- f. I am applying \$\_\_\_\_: Amount of the expense allowance to be applied to an outstanding advance.

Items (g) through (l) apply to bargaining unit employees only.

- g. Date: The date the expense was incurred.
- h. Nature of Expense: The description of the expense. See part 292 for the types of reimbursable costs.
- i. Amount: The amount of to be reimbursed.
- j. Subtotal: The total of the itemized costs.
- k. Amount Applied to Outstanding Advance: Amount of the expense allowance to be applied to an outstanding advance.
- 1. Total: Amount reimbursed to the transferee.
- m. Signature of Payee: Sign the form here. The name here must be the same as the name shown at the top of the voucher.
- n. Date: The date you submit your voucher for payment.
- o. Authorized Approving Official's Signature: The approving official will sign here.
- p. Date: The date the approving official signs the voucher.
- q. Title of Payee: Your official job title.
- r. Title: The approving official's title.

w.,9' ri goz. 4			
Name of Payee (First, M.L., Last) (Q.)	Social Security Number	Specific Travel Order	Number (C)
Accress of Official Data Strange		<u></u>	
(d)			
I claim standard allowance of			
] I hereby make claim for misce □ I am applying \$ (十)	Plianeous expenses incurred in ex		F-12, Part 290):
	to my outstanding advan		
Date	Nature of E	xpense	Amount
19)	( h)		\$· (i)
•			
			1
	**************************************		
Subtotal			\$ (j)
Amount applied to	**************************************		
outstanding advance			
			Total \$ (1)
Signature of Payee	Date (n)	Authorized Approving Official's Signature (0)	(P)
(m) (de of Payee		Table (C)	
(9)		(٢)	
	ree accours works a forfeiture of the claim (28 USC 251		imprisonment for not more than 5 years or both (18 US

Relocation - Miscellaneous Expense Allowance Claim

Appendix D, Form 4871, Relocation - Miscellaneous Expense Allowance Claim

The collection of the information is authorized by 39 U.S.C. 1001 and 2008. This information will be used to account to your efficiel day travel and relocation expendes. As a notifier use, this information may be disclosed to a congressional office at your request; to CMS for review of private make legislation; to a labor organization as required by NLPA, where performan is legal proceeding to which the USPS is a perty, to an appropriate as written agency to reviewing about a procession by the proceedings purposes; to a pre-imment agency in other legislation contact with the USPS is the proceeding appropriate to proceedings to the USPS; to an expert or correlation under contact with USPS is ufill an appropriation; to the Fictional Records Certain for storage; to the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission for investigating a formal EEO complain field against USPS under 25 CFR 1510; to an independent Certified Public Accounts during an official acut of USPS instruct, and to the Head of USPS instruct, and the Public Accounts during an official acut of USPS instruct, and to the Head of USPS instruct, and the Public Accounts during an official acut of USPS instruct, and to the instruction floater of Office of Special Counted for proceedings involving possible prohibited personnel practice. The completion of this form a voluntary, however, if this information is not provided, you thay not be minimumsed for your travel and relocation experience.

PS Form 4871, October 1990

#### Form 4877, Reimbursement of Real Estate Expenses - Change of Official Station

This section shows you how to fill out the front of Form 4877. The steps are keyed to the sections in Exhibit 631.1. You should type or print the following information:

- a. Name of Payee (First, M.I., Last): Your name.
- b. Check Applicable Box...: If a previous claim related to the sale or purchase of residence under the same specific travel order number, check yes. If a previous claim related to the sale/purchase of your residence was not submitted, check no.
- c. Official Duty Station Address: The address of your new official duty station.
- d. Old Official Station: The location of your previous official duty station (city, state, zip + 4).
- e. Social Security No.: Your social security number.
- f. Specific Travel Order Number: This number is available from Form 178, Specific Travel Order Relocation & Relocation Agreement.
- g. Old Official Station: The data applicable to the residence in which you moved from and are claiming expenses.
- h. New Official Station: The data applicable to the residence in which you moved to and are claiming expenses.
- i. Complete Address of Residence: The address of your previous/current residence in which expenses are being claimed.
- j. No. of Dwelling Units on Property: The number of living units on the property being sold/purchased.
- k. Sale and/or Purchase Price: The contract sale/purchase price of the residence.
- l. Date of Closing or Settlement: The date the transaction occurred.
- m. Amt. of Expense Claimed: The total allowable expenses claimed resulting from the sale/purchase of your residence.
- n. Adjustments to Amount Claimed: San Mateo Postal Data Center use only.
- o. Amount Applied to Outstanding Advance: The amount of the claim to be applied to your outstanding advance.
- p. Net to Transferee: The amount to be reimbursed to the employee.
- q. Signature of Employee: Sign the form here. The name here must be the same as the name shown at the top of the voucher.
- r. Date: The date you submit your voucher for payment.
- s. Title of Approving Official (at former duty station): The title of the approving official at the former duty station authorizing the claim. Required for property transactions (sale) at the former duty station.
- t. Date: The date the approving official at the former duty station signs the voucher.
- u. Title of Approving Official (at the new duty station): The title of the approving official at the new duty station authorizing the claim. Required for property transactions (purchase) at the new duty station.
- v. Date: The date the approving official signs the voucher.
- w. Signature of Approving Official (at former duty station): The approving official will sign here.
- x. Signature of Approving Official (at new duty station): The approving official will sign here.
- y. Funding Finance Number Approving Official's Signature and Date: The employee's immediate PCES manager will sign and date here.



#### Reimbursement of Real Estate Expenses -Change of Official Station

-		_	
	INCTR	-	ANG

(See Handbook F-12, Relocation Policy and F-11, PCES Relocation Policy)

3. Be sure you have signed the Employee Certification(s) below.
4. Submit this form with supporting documentation to the General Manager, National Accounting Division, Dept. of the Controller (Headquarters); or Field Division Controller (Field Division), Regional Manager, Accounting & Systems Compliance (Region), or Regional Chief Inspector or Inspector in Charge (Inspection Service), as appropriate. When Form 4877 is signed by the appropriate approving official(s), submit to the San Mateo RDC for prement. Complete Parts I, II, and III of face and enter an appropriate totals on reverse.

Attach one complete set of documents required to support claim,
a. Copy of sales agreement between buyer and seller.
b. Copy of settlement sheet.
c. Copy of receipt for any item claimed that is not on settlement sheet (credit report appraisal, etc.)
d. Copy of disclosure statement that is required by Regulation Z and the Truth in Lending Act (purchase transactions only).

I. EMPLOY! 1. Complete Parts I, II, and III of face and enter all applicable amounts and I. EMPLOYEE -- CLAIMANT Name (First, M.I., Last) Check Applicable Box if Earlier Claim for Real Estate Expenses Submitted for this Transaction **□**₹•• □ № (a) Official Duty Station address (c) IL TRANSFER DATA Old Official Station (d) (e) (t) III. RESIDENCE PROPERTY DATA (9) (h) (0 Complete Address of Residence (Include Apt./Suite No. & ZIP+4) No. of Dwelling Units on Property Sale and/or Purchase Price Adjustments to Amount Clair (o) Net to Transferee (P) Employee Certification I hereby certify that the amount claimed in connection with the above transaction represents only amounts-actually-paid-by the and that title to the prop was in my name and/or a member of my transfer, or is my new residence, Signature of Employee (r) IV. APPROVALS A. Sales Expenses—The expenses of the sale applied for above are he B. Purchase Expenses—The expenses of the purchase applies are hereby approved as being (1) reasonable in amount and (2 paid by a buyer in the locality where the property is located.

As Claimed As Increased As Reduced, Per Att A Sales Capitalisa - The supposes to the superposed superposed as being (1) reasonable in amount and (2) customarily peid by a seller in the locality where the property is located.

As Claimed As Increased As Reduced, Per Attached Memo rount and (2) custs (u) (5) (t) (v) (w) (x)(4) abification of an item in an expense account works a forfeiture of the claim (26 USC 2514) and may result in a first of not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than 5 years or both (16 USC

The collection of this information is authorized by 30 U.S.C. 1001 and 2008. This information will be used to account for your official duty trivial and relocation expenses. As a motifine use, this information may be disclosed to a congressional office at your request to CMB for review of private mixed legislation; to a labor organization as required by NLRA where persinent in a legal proceeding to which the USPS is a perty, to an appropriate intermitted private mixed private mixed by the sequestry a legal purposes. The appropriate personal purposes in a government aperty where mixed to being, contracting, or learning decision by the requesting appropriate personal purposes. The Findent Records Center to storage; to the Equal Employment Corporating Contractions for the Findent Records Center to storage; to the Equal Employment Corporating Contractions for recognizing a format EEC complaint field against USPS under 20 CPR 1613; to an independent Centered Public Accountant during an efficial acut of USPS impress; and to the left System Posterion Board or Corporating Corporating Contraction or proceedings involving possible prohibed personnel practice. The completion of this form is voluntary, however, if this information is not provided, you may not be reinforced for your trivial and relocation expenses.

PS Form 4877, October 1990

Appendix D, Form 4877 (Front), Reimbursement of Real Estate Expenses-Change of Official Station

#### Form 4879, Certification Statement - Claim for Relocation Income Tax Allowance

This section shows you how to fill out Form 4879. The steps are keyed to the sections in Form 4879. You should type or print the following information:

- a. 19: The tax year in which relocation benefits were included as income to you.
- b. Earned Income (Yours): Your gross income reported on Form W-2.
- c. Earned Income (Spouse's): Your spouse's gross income reported on Form W-2.
- d. Earned Income (Total): You and your spouse's combined gross income reported on Form W-2.
- e. Filing Status...: Check the same filing status you used on your Federal income tax return.
- f. Local Tax...: Enter the tax rates levied on your reported income by your city and/or county, if applicable.
- g. Basis of Tax: The rate in which your local tax is assessed.
- h. Transferee's Printed or Typed Name (First, M.I., Last): Your name.
- i. Social Security No.: Your social security number.
- j. Transferee's Signature: Sign the form here.
- k. Date: The date you submit the certification to the San Mateo Postal Data Center.



### Certification Statement - Claim for Relocation Income Tax Allowance

I certify that the following information, which is to be used to calculate the Relocation Income Tax allowance to which I am entitled, has (or will be) included on the income tax returns which have (or will be) filed by me with the applicable federal, state, and local tax authorities for the 19 (a) tax year.

	Earned Incom	70	Filing Status (Use one of the five filing status item	s from IRS Form 1040.)
Yours: (b)	Spouse's: (C)	Total: (d)	Single  Single  Single  Suzifying widow with dependent children	Head of household Married filing separate return
Local Tax (Specify rate	by City and/or County)		Basis of Tax:	
(	<u>(f)</u>		(9)	
The above information	n is true and accurate	to the best of my knowledge. I	Transferee's Printed or Typed Name (First, M.I., Las	) Social Security No.
agree to notify the ap	propriate postal official	of any changes to the above appropriate adjustment to the	(k)	(i)
		vide additional documentation if	Transferee's Signature	Date
required.			(j)	(k)

The collection of this information is authorized by 20 U.S.C. 1001 and 2008. This information will be used to account for your official duty states and relocation expenses. As a number use, this information may be disclosed to a compassional office at your required, to CMB for review of private needs legislation; to a labor organization is required by MLRA, where pertinent in a legisl proceeding to which the USPS is a purity, to an accompassion as processes agreed to review a process of the contraction of the contracting of the contracting, or increasing decision by the required decision by the USPS, to an exemption or consultant under contract sets in the USPS to fulfill an approxyl function, to the Federal Records General to strongs to be Equal Emotyment Opportunity, Commission for inestigating a format EEO compliant field appared USPS under 25 CFR 1913; to an independent Cardided Public Accountant during an official audit of USPS Stations; and is the Meet System Proceedings for the Country of

PS Form 4879, October 1990

Appendix D, Form 4879, Certification Statement-Claim for Relocation Income Tax Allowance

#### Form 1011, Travel Advance Request and Itinerary Schedule

This section shows you how to complete Form 1011. The steps are keyed to the sections in Exhibit 223. You should type or print the following information:

- a. Regular: To be checked for regular travel and travel for training.
- b. Relocation (Type: ): To be checked for advances associated with relocation. Enter the type (phase) of relocation in which you are applying for an advance of funds.
- c. Travel Order Number: Enter the travel order number from your Form 178, Specific Travel Order Relocation & Relocation Agreement.
- d. Name of Traveler: Your name.
- e. Social Security No.: Your social security number.
- f. Travel Dates (From): The date travel starts.
- g. Travel Dates (To): The date travel ends.
- h. Finance Number: The finance number to which the travel expenses will be charged.
- i. Official Duty Station Address: Your current official duty station.
- j. Mode of Transportation: The type of transportation to be used.
- k. Origin Date & Time: The location in which your travel starts, date and time of departure.
- l. Destination Date & Time: The location in which your travel ends, date and time of arrival.
- m. Estimated Cost: The estimated cost of the expense category.
- n. Establishment Name and Address: Where you stay while on travel.
- o. Telephone Number: The phone number where you are staying while on travel.
- p. List other legs of your trip and any other lodging: List other transportation and lodging establishments, if necessary.
- q. Car Rental: The car rental company used, the rate charged, and the number of days of service.
- r. Miscellaneous Other Expenses: Document other known reimbursable expenses.
- s. Per diem: Calculate the estimated high/average per diem for travel.
- t. Subtotal: The total estimated cost for the travel period.
- u. Deduct Amount Charged to Personal Credit Cards(s): Deduct expenses to be charged by credit card, GTS, or another party.
- v. Net Advance Requested: The amount of advance requested (subtotal minus deductions).
- w. Signature of Traveler: Sign the form here.
- x. Date: The date you submit the form for approval.
- y. Signature and Title of Approving Official: The approving official will sign and include title here.
- z. Date: The date the approving official signs the form.
- aa. Amount Received (Signature & Date): To be signed and dated when cash is received.

1	Travel Advance			(A)	Relocation (Type:	(b)	
AMERICAN STRAIGS	and Itinerary So	chedule			Travel Order No.;	(c)	
Name of Traveler	(First M.L. Last)				Social Security Number	r	
ravel Dates	(L)				Finance Number	<u>(e)</u>	
race, Dates	From: (f)	To: /9	)		Pinance Number	(h)	j
Phicial Duty State	on Address						
RANSPORTATION	ON					Es	timated Cost p
	portation and Company	Origin	Date & Time	Destination	Date & Time	s	
Mode of Transi	(J) portation and Company	Origin (k)	Date & Time	Destination (1)	Date & Time	<del>  •</del>	
	(i)	(k)	Dan & Frie	(1)	Date 0 11116		
DDGING						T	
	Name and Address		<del></del>	Telephone Number		+	****
	(n)			(0)	)	<u> </u>	
Establishment	Name and Address ( h)			Telephone Number			
st other legs of y	your trip and any other looging					$\dagger$	
	<u>(e)</u>					┼	
ar Rental Comp	any	Rate		Number of Days		┼──	<del></del>
	(9)			•			
scellaneous/oth	ner expenses: List: ( )~)					T	,,
						+	
er Diem: (-)							
er Diem: High Cost (5)	periods x rate		•			1	
			***************************************				
Average Cost:_	periods x rate		•			+	
JETOTAL						.\$	( <del>t</del> )
rduct Amount C	harped to Personal Credit Card(	s) and for Diners Club GTS	Account			(	(N)
ET ADVANCE F	REQUESTED					\$	(y)
ested. Failure to rer 00,00, the person to dividual may be fine civil penalties pursu	in volation of 18 U.S.C. 1711, for the a mit any monies owed for overdue adver- self be fined not more than 1000,00 or i id in an amoure equal to the amoure of a sere to 31 U.S.C. 3801.	nces, when required to do so by let riprisoned for not more then one y	e or Postal Service regulations rear, or both. Under 18 U.S.	ns, may be subject to fine a C. 1711, an otherse involvin	ndor imprisonment. Where I ig an amount greater than \$1	ne amount er 00.00 constit	-vaius due does not es tulies embezziemen as
gnature of Trave	(w)					Date	/-/
gnature and Trib	e of Approving Official		·····			Date	_\
	(Y)						(Z)
nount Received	(Signature and Date)						
e collection of this is	information is authorized by 39 U.S.C. 1	001 and 2008. This information w	il be used to accours for yo	or official duty travel and rek	ocation expenses. As a music	use, the m	formation may be duc
econgressional offi eniorgament agen	ice at your request; to OMB for review try for investigative or prosecutorial pur	ol private relief legislation; to a lat souses; to a government agency w	bor organization as required here relevant to a hiring, col	by NLICA; where pertinent i Tracting, or ficersing decision	in a legal proceeding to which on by the reducting agency:	to a governm	is a party; to an appro Herit appency in order b
ployment Copportun	a hiring, contracting, or licensing deci- nity Commission for investigating a form	us EEO complaint lifed against U.	SPS under 29 CFR 1613; to	an independent Centiled P	ublic Accounts/It during an o	ficial audit of	USPS financies; and
s System Protection	on Board or Othos of Special Coursel (	or proceedings involving possible	prohibited personnel practi	ce. The completion of this to	rm is voluntary, however, if	his informatio	on is not provided, y

Appendix D, Form 1011, Travel Advance Request and Itinerary Schedule

PS Form 1011, October 1990

Handbook F-12, June 1991 91

#### Form 8059, Request for Relocation Management Firm (RMF) Service

This section shows you how to complete Form 8059. The steps are keyed to the sections in Exhibit 412.2. You should type or print the following information:

- a. Name of Transferee: The employee's name.
- b. Office Commercial Number: The commercial telephone number at which the employee can be contacted.
- c. Social Security Number: The employee's social security number.
- d. Office PEN Number: The PEN telephone number at which the employee can be contacted.
- e. New B/A: The budget account of the employee's new duty station.
- f. New Finance Number: The finance number of the employee's new duty station.
- g. Home Number: The telephone number at which the employee can be reached while off duty.
- h. Address of Old Residence: The employee's residence at the old duty station.
- i. Address of New Residence: The employee's residence at the new duty station.
- j. Address of New Duty Station: The issuing office's address.
- k. New Office Number: The telephone number of the issuing office.
- l. Employee's Reporting Date: The date the employee reports for duty.
- m. Check the Appropriate Box(es)...: Check the type of service to be provided to the employee (household goods and home purchase) and the employee category (EAS or PCES).
- n. Signature of Approving Official: The approving official will sign here.
- o. Typed Name and Title of Approving Official: Approving official's name and title.
- p. Office Name: The issuing office's name.



#### Request for Relocation Management Firm (RMF) Service

RELOCATION MANAGEMENT SECTION SAN MATEO POSTAL DATA CENTER 2700 CAMPUS DRIVE SAN MATEO CA 94497-9510

#### Please request services from an appropriate RMF for the employee named below.

		····					
Name of Transferee				Office Commercial Number			
(a)				(	)	<b>(1)</b>	
Social Security Number				Office PEN Number			
(c)				,	)	(d)	
New B/A	New B/A New Finance Number			Home Number			
	<u>(e)</u>	(t)			)	(9)	
Address of	Oid Residence (for RMF	ta pick up household good:	5)	Address If Availa		ew Residence (for RMF to deliver hou	sehold goods)
Address of New Duty Station				New Office Number			
(i)				( ) (K)			
				Employee's Reporting Date			
						(1)	
	k the appropriate ested	box(es) for the sen	rices				
(m)	Household	Home		Signatu	re of A	Approving Official	
6.0	Goods	Purchase	7			(h)	
EAS	□ Yes	Deviation Basis		Typed i	Typed Name and Title of Approving Official (O)		
PCES	o Yes	□ Yes		Office Name			

PS Form 8059, May 1990

Appendix D, Form 8059, Request for Relocation Management Firm (RMF) Service

Handbook F-12, June 1991 93